
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Lisa Antrobus, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207064 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk 

www.torbay.gov.uk  

(i) 

 

Tuesday, 14 January 2014 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

A meeting of Audit Committee will be held on 
 

Wednesday, 22 January 2014 
 

commencing at 2.00 pm 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Tyerman (Chairman) 

 

Councillor Addis 

Councillor Bent 

Councillor Brooksbank 

 

Councillor Stocks 

Councillor Stringer 

 

 

 

Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay 



(ii) 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Apologies  
 To receive any apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 3) 
 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Audit Committee held on 25 September 2013. 
 

3.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

4.   Urgent Items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
5.   Audit Committee Update (Pages 4 - 13) 
 To note the update from Grant Thornton. 

 
6.   The Annual Audit Letter for Torbay Council (Pages 14 - 25) 
 To consider a report that summarises the key findings arising from 

the audit of the 2012/13 accounts and an assessment of the 
Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 

7.   Certification Report 2012/13 (Pages 26 - 35) 
 To consider a report that summarises Grant Thornton’s overall 

assessment of the Council’s management arrangements in respect 
of the certification process. 



(iii) 

 
8.   Internal Audit Report 2013/14 - Six Month Monitoring Report (Pages 36 - 62) 
 To consider a report that provides a summary of performance in the 

first six months against the internal audit plan for the 2013/14 
financial year. 
 

9.   Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 (Pages 63 - 94) 
 To consider the Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 this also 

incorporates the Annual Investment Strategy 2014/15 and the 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 2014/15. 
 

10.   Strategic Risk Management Quarter 2 2013/14 (Pages 95 - 103) 
 To the Council’s risk management position for Quarter 2. 

 



 
 

Minutes of the Audit Committee 

 
25 September 2013 

 
-: Present :- 

 
Councillor Tyerman (Chairman) 

 

Councillors Addis, Bent, Brooksbank, Stocks and Stringer 
 
 

 
13. Minutes  

 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 26 June 2013 were 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

14. Urgent Items  
 
The Committee considered the items in Minutes 15, and not included on the 
agenda, the Chairman being of the opinion that they were urgent by reason of 
special circumstances i.e. the matter having arisen since the agenda was 
prepared and it was unreasonable to delay a decision until the next meeting. 
 

15. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  
 
Following a change to the membership of the Audit Committee the need had 
arisen to appoint a new Vice-Chairman. 
 
Resolved: 
 
Councillor Stringer was appointed Vice-Chairman for the remainder of the 
2013/2014 Municipal Year. 
 

16. The Audit Findings for Torbay Council  
 
Members noted the report which highlighted the key matters arising from Grant 
Thornton’s (external auditors) audit of Torbay Council’s financial statements for the 
year ending 31 March 2013. 
 
Members were advised that Grant Thornton anticipated they would be able to 
provide an unqualified opinion on the financial statements.  The audit of the 
financial statements submitted did not identify any errors which would adjust the 
reported surplus for the year, however an error was identified that reduced the 
balance sheet. 
 
Members were informed that the accounts were produced to a good standard, the 
audit had been facilitated by good supporting working papers and excellent 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Audit Committee   Wednesday, 25 September 2013 
 

 
assistance by the finance team with all requests for additional information being 
dealt with promptly. 
 

17. Review of the Council's Arrangements for Securing Financial Resilience for 
Torbay Council  
 
Members noted the report on Torbay Council’s arrangements for securing financial 
resilience.  Members were advised that as part of Grant Thornton’s work 
supporting their Value for Money (VFM) conclusion, part of the statutory external 
audit, includes a review to determine if the Council has proper arrangements in 
place for securing financial resilience.  Grant Thornton reviewed the Council’s 
financial resilience by looking at: 
 

• Key indicators of financial performance; 

• Its approach to strategic financial planning ; 

• Its approach to financial governance; and 

• Its approach to financial control. 
 
Having undertaken a review Grant Thornton were able to determine that the 
Council’s current arrangements for achieving financial resilience were adequate. 
 

18. Statement of Accounts 2012/13  
 
The Chief Accountant advised Members that the Account and Audit Regulations 
2011 required approval of the Council’s Statement of Accounts for the year ending 
on 31 March 2013 before the 30 September 2013.  Members were informed that 
the accounts had been available on the Council’s website since the 28 June 2013 
and have been available for public scrutiny for 20 working days during July and 
August. 
 
Members asked questions and sought clarification on a number of points including 
the Council’s pension liability and transfer of assets to schools. 
 
Resolved: 
 
i) that the Audit Committee reviewed the accounts and considered the 

External Auditor’s report and opinion on the accounts; 
 
ii) that following i) above the Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2012/13, as 

set out in pages 15 to 136 of Appendix 2 to the submitted report be 
approved; 

 
iii) that following approval of ii) above, the Chairman of the Audit be authorised 

to sign and date the accounts on behalf of the Council, to represent the 
completion of the Council’s approval process of the Accounts, in the 
“Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts” shown on 
page 17 of the submitted statement of accounts; and  

 

Page 2



Audit Committee   Wednesday, 25 September 2013 
 

 
iv) that the Letter of Representation to Grant Thornton from the Council in 

relation to the 2012/13 Statement of Accounts, as set out in Appendix 1 to 
the submitted report be approved. 

 
19. Internal Audit Report - Follow Up Report on Areas Requiring Improvement  

 
Members noted the Internal Audit follow up report on areas that were identified as 
requiring improvement.  Members were informed that in order to provide 
assurance to management and those charged with governance that the agreed 
actions identified during the initial audit were being implemented; a follow up 
review was undertaken. 
 
The Head of the Devon Audit Partnership was able to advise Members that, 
overall progress was being made against the agreed audit recommendations with 
the direction of travel showing an improvement in the majority of areas. 
 
Members paid particular attention to the improvements required within Children 
Services and requested a further update on progress be presented to the Audit 
Committee on 22 January 2014. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman/woman 

Page 3



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
U
p
d
at
e

fo
r 
T
o
rb
ay
 C
o
u
n
ci
l

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4

2
2

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

A
lu

n
W

il
li
a
m

s

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

L
e
a
d

T
0
1
1
7
 3

0
5
7
 7

9
7

E
a
lu

n
.g

.w
ill

ia
m

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

S
u

e
 H

ic
k

A
u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

T
0
1
1
7
 3

0
5
7
 8

7
2

E
s
u
e
.h

ic
k
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

Agenda Item 5

Page 4



T
h
e 
co
n
te
n
ts
 o
f 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 r
el
at
e 
o
n
ly
 t
o
 t
h
e 
m
at
te
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 h
av
e 
co
m
e 
to
 o
u
r 
at
te
n
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic
h
 w
e 
b
el
ie
v
e 
n
ee
d
 t
o
 b
e 
re
p
o
rt
ed
 t
o
 y
o
u
 a
s 
p
ar
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 
 I
t 
is
 n
o
t 
a 

co
m
p
re
h
en
si
v
e 
re
co
rd
 o
f 
al
l 
th
e 
re
le
v
an
t 
m
at
te
rs
, 
w
h
ic
h
 m

ay
 b
e 
su
b
je
ct
 t
o
 c
h
an
ge
, 
an
d
 i
n
 

p
ar
ti
cu
la
r 
w
e 
ca
n
n
o
t 
b
e 
h
el
d
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 t
o
 y
o
u
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g 
al
l 
o
f 
th
e 
ri
sk
s 
w
h
ic
h
 m

ay
 a
ff
ec
t 

yo
u
r 
b
u
si
n
es
s 
o
r 
an
y 
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s 
in
 y
o
u
r 
in
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
. 
 T
h
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 h
as
 b
ee
n
 p
re
p
ar
ed
 

so
le
ly
 f
o
r 
yo
u
r 
b
en
ef
it
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e 
q
u
o
te
d
 i
n
 w
h
o
le
 o
r 
in
 p
ar
t 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
r 
w
ri
tt
en
 

co
n
se
n
t.
 W

e 
d
o
 n
o
t 
ac
ce
p
t 
an
y 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
an
y 
lo
ss
 o
cc
as
io
n
ed
 t
o
 a
n
y 
th
ir
d
 p
ar
ty
 a
ct
in
g,
 

o
r 
re
fr
ai
n
in
g 
fr
o
m
 a
ct
in
g 
o
n
 t
h
e 
b
as
is
 o
f 
th
e 
co
n
te
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
, 
as
 t
h
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 w
as
 n
o
t 

p
re
p
ar
ed
 f
o
r,
 n
o
r 
in
te
n
d
ed
 f
o
r,
 a
n
y 
o
th
er
 p
u
rp
o
se
.

.

Page 5



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 

33

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e
c
ti

o
n

P
a
g

e

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

4

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

5

E
m

e
rg

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

L
o
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

7
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

9

Page 6



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 

44

In
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n

T
h
is

 p
a
p
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

it
h
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 in

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 o
u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

s
 y

o
u
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

. 
T

h
e
 p

a
p
e
r 

a
ls

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
:

•
a
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
e
m

e
rg

in
g

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
to

 y
o
u
;
a
n
d

•
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 in

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
 e

m
e
rg

in
g

 is
s
u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

a
y
 w

is
h
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r.

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

a
n
 f

in
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
s
e
fu

l 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
o
n
 o

u
r 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 w

w
w

.g
ra

n
t-

th
o
rn

to
n
.c

o
.u

k
, 
w

h
e
re

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
e
c
ti
o
n

d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 

to
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r.
 H

e
re

 y
o
u
 c

a
n
 d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
 c

o
p
ie

s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 –

'L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 2

0
1
3
',

'T
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 

ti
p
p
in

g
 p

o
in

t?
',
 'T

h
e
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
',
 'T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a

g
e
n
d
a
',
 'P

re
p
a
ri
n
g

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
', 

'S
u
rv

iv
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

to
rm

: 
h
o
w

 

re
s
ili

e
n
t 

a
re

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

If
 y

o
u
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

n
y
 i
te

m
s
 i
n
 t
h
is

 b
ri
e
fi
n
g

, 
o
r 

w
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
w

it
h
 G

ra
n
t 
T

h
o
rn

to
n
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
re

g
u
la

r 
e
m

a
il 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 

o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 o
f 
in

te
re

s
t 
to

 y
o
u
, 
p
le

a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
e
it
h
e
r 

y
o
u
r 

E
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 o

r 
A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r.

A
lu

n
W

ill
ia

m
s
 -

E
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
  
T

 0
1
1
7
 3

0
5
7
7
9
7

M
 0

7
8
8
0

4
5
6
1
4
3

a
lu

n
.g

.w
ill

ia
m

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

S
u
e

H
ic

k
 -

A
u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

T
 0

1
1
7
 3

0
5
7
8
7
2
  
 M

 0
7
8
8
0

4
5
6
1
3
3

s
u
e
.h

ic
k
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

Page 7



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 

55

P
ro
g
re
ss
 a
t 
Ja
n
u
ar
y 
2
0
1
4

W
o

rk
P

la
n

n
e
d

 d
a
te

C
o

m
p

le
te

?
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

W
e
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
 

p
la

n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

s
e
tt

in
g

 o
u
t 
o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 g

iv
e
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

/M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

N
/A

O
u
r 

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
c
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

o
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
.

In
te

ri
m

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
 

O
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 v
is

it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
:

•
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g

o
u
r

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
c
o
n
tr

o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

•
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g

o
u
r

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s

•
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 c

o
re

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

s
y
s
te

m
s

•
e
a
rl
y
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 e

m
e
rg

in
g

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 i
s
s
u
e
s

•
e
a
rl
y

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 t
e
s
ti
n
g

.

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4

N
/A

O
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

in
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

. 
 O

u
r 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

lo
n
g

 w
it
h
 o

u
r 

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 f

in
a
l 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it

In
c
lu

d
in

g
:

•
a
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

•
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

's
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

•
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

J
u
ly

 -
A

u
g

u
s
t 
2
0
1
4

N
/A

Page 8



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 

66

P
ro
g
re
ss
 a
t 
Ja
n
u
ar
y 
2
0
1
4

W
o

rk
P

la
n

n
e
d

 d
a
te

C
o

m
p

le
te

?
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 (

V
fM

) 
c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n

T
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 V

fM

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
:

•
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
; 

a
n
d
 

•
c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 h
o
w

 i
t 
s
e
c
u
re

s
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 

In
it
ia

l 
ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
–

J
a
n
u
a
ry

/F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0
1
4

D
e
ta

ile
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
–

M
a
rc

h
/A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4

N
/A

Page 9



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 

77

E
m
er
gi
n
g 
is
su
es
 a
n
d
 d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
ts

L
o

c
a
l
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

In
c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 

In
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r,

 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 ‘
In

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 c

h
a
rg

in
g

: 
U

s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 V

F
M

 P
ro

fi
le

s
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
′.

T
h
e
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s

a
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

' 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 c

h
a
rg

in
g

, 
to

ta
lli

n
g

 £
1
0
.2

 b
ill

io
n
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 i
t 
m

a
d
e
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
. 
It

 

lo
o
k
s
 a

t 
th

e
 t
re

n
d
s
 f
o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
ty

p
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 a
c
ro

s
s
 b

ro
a
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
.

K
e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

:

•
c
h
a
rg

in
g

 in
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 9

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
in

g
le

-t
ie

r 
a
n
d
 c

o
u
n
ty

 c
o
u
n
c
ils

’ 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

, 
a
n
d
 2

0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
is

tr
ic

t 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

•
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 c

h
a
rg

in
g

 w
a
s
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 h

a
lf
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
ra

is
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
, 
a
t 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
it
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 i
n
 o

n
e
 i
n
 t

h
re

e
 (

3
2
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 o

n
e
 i
n
 f

iv
e
 (

2
1
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s

•
th

e
re

is
 g

re
a
t 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 t
h
e
y
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
 f
ro

m
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
, 
th

e
 r

a
ti
o
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

in
g

 in
c
o
m

e
 t
o

s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

in
g

 t
o
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 v

a
ri
e
d
 m

o
s
t
fo

r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
w

it
h
 2

 t
o
 8

7
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
b
e
in

g
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
.

T
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 c

h
a
ir
m

a
n
, 
J
e
re

m
y
 N

e
w

m
a
n
, 

s
a
id

 'T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 ‘
o
n
e
-s

iz
e
-f

it
s
-a

ll’
 f

o
rm

u
la

 f
o
r 

h
o
w

 c
o
u
n
c
ils

 s
e
t 
th

e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

in
g

 

p
o
lic

ie
s
. 

W
e
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

o
ld

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t,

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
ro

le
 

th
a
t 
c
h
a
rg

in
g

 p
la

y
s
 i
n
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

’ 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 
s
o
m

e
 b

o
d
ie

s
 d

e
ri
v
e
 m

o
re

 in
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 c
h
a
rg

in
g

 t
h
a
n

c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 i
s
 n

e
it
h
e
r 

g
o
o
d
 n

o
r 

b
a
d
, 
b
u
t 
h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ro

le
 c

h
a
rg

in
g

 p
la

y
s
 i
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
m

in
d
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n
d
 

e
le

c
to

rs
 t
o
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
re

 t
a
k
in

g
.'

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

s
:

•
W

h
e
n

 d
id

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 l
a
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
 i
ts

 l
o

c
a
l 
c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

li
c
y
?

 D
o

e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

's
 p

o
li

c
y
 s

ti
ll
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

's
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
?

 W
h

a
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e
?

•
D

o
 y

o
u

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i

n
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 a
n

d
 i

ts
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

li
c
ie

s
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

ly
in

g
 w

it
h

 l
e
g

a
l 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
?

Page 10



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 

88

E
m
er
gi
n
g 
is
su
es
 a
n
d
 d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
ts

L
o

c
a
l
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

In
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
, 
th

e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 
L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 w
ill

 n
o
w

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 h

a
lf
 o

f 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 in

c
o
m

e
 t
h
e
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 p

a
y
in

g
 i
t 
a
ll 

in
to

 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
o
l.
 A

s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 in
c
o
m

e
 g

ro
w

s
, 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

ill
 k

e
e
p
 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
w

th
.

In
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 '
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
: 
u
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 V

F
M

 p
ro

fi
le

s
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
'.
 T

h
is

 b
ri
e
fi
n
g

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
ra

w
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

 V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y
 (

V
F

M
) 

p
ro

fi
le

s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
E

n
g

lis
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
ts

o
f 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
.

T
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

te
p
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 c
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
:

•
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 d

o
 w

e
ll 

a
n
d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
n
g

 n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

re
a

•
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g

 a
n
d
 b

ill
in

g
 a

ll 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
te

a
b
le

 v
a
lu

e
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y

•
u
s
in

g
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 r
e
lie

f 
in

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
, 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 m

o
s
t 
in

 n
e
e
d

•
p
re

v
e
n
ti
n
g

 a
n
d
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 f
ra

u
d
u
le

n
t 
c
la

im
s
 f

o
r 

re
lie

f

•
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s

•
re

d
u
c
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

.

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

s
:

•
H

a
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

s
im

il
a
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
?

•
W

h
a
t 

s
te

p
s
 c

o
u

ld
 y

o
u

r 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
a
k
e
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
it

 c
o

ll
e
c
ts

 f
ro

m
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
?

•
A

re
 y

o
u

 s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

 f
o

r 
it

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 a
p

p
e
a
ls

?

Page 11



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 

99

E
m
er
gi
n
g 
is
su
es
 a
n
d
 d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
ts

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
s
u

e
s

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 p

la
n

t 
a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
re

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 p

la
n
t
a
n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t.

 P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
o
n
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g

 b
a
s
is

 o
v
e
r 

a
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 
5
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 C

o
d
e
 n

o
w

 r
e
s
tr

ic
ts

 t
h
is

 o
p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 r

e
q

u
ir
in

g
:

•
re

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
if
fe

r 
m

a
te

ri
a
lly

 f
ro

m
 t
h
a
t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
a
ir
 v

a
lu

e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 p
e
ri
o
d

•
it
e
m

s
 w

it
h
in

 a
 c

la
s
s
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
p
la

n
t 
a
n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 r

e
v
a
lu

e
d
 s

im
u
lt
a
n
e
o
u
s
ly

 t
o
 a

v
o
id

 s
e
le

c
ti
v
e
 r

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g

 o
f 
a
m

o
u
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 a
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
d
a
te

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 p

e
rm

it
s
 a

s
s
e
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 c

la
s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
a
lu

e
d
 o

n
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g

 b
a
s
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

la
s
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 s

h
o
rt

 p
e
ri
o
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 k

e
p
t 
u
p
 t
o
 d

a
te

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
 '
a
 s

h
o
rt

 p
e
ri
o
d
' b

u
t 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
's

 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
v
o
id

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g

 a
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
d
a
te

s
 s

u
g

g
e
s
ts

th
a
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
, 
a
ll 

a
s
s
e
ts

 w
it
h
in

 a
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
la

s
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 v

a
lu

e
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

s

•
A

re
 b

o
th

 y
o

u
r 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 H

e
a
d

 F
in

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
d

v
is

o
rs

 s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
r 

re
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 
P

la
n

t 
a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 w

il
l 
n

o
t 

d
if

fe
r 

m
a
te

ri
a
ll
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

a
ir

 v
a
lu

e
 a

t 
th

a
t 

d
a
te

?

•
H

a
s
 y

o
u

r 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 H

e
a
d

 F
in

a
n

c
e

re
v
ie

w
e
d

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 C

o
d

e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 a
 v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

y
o

u
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 c
o

m
p

li
e
s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
d

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
?

•
W

h
e
re

 y
o

u
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 f
u

ll
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 i

n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
, 
a
re

 y
o

u
 s

a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

y
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 i
s
 

im
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
a
n

d
 h

a
s
 a

n
 a

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 b

e
e
n

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e
a
rs

?

Page 12



Page 13



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

.

T
h
e 
A
n
n
u
al
 A
u
d
it
 L
et
te
r

fo
r 
T
o
rb
ay
 C
o
u
n
ci
l

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

A
lu

n
W

il
li

a
m

s

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
L

e
a

d

T
0

1
1

7
 3

0
5

 7
7

9
7

E
 

a
lu

n
.g

.w
ill

ia
m

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

S
u

e
 H

ic
k

A
u

d
it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

T
0

1
1

7
 3

0
5

 7
8

7
2

E
 

s
u

e
.h

ic
k
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

Agenda Item 6

Page 14



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

2

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e
c
ti
o
n

P
a
g
e

1.
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

4

2.
A
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts

7

3.
V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 

9

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
 
R
ep
o
rt
s 
is
su
ed
 a
n
d
 f
ee
s

Page 15



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
:

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

Page 16



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

4

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 L
e
tt
e
r

O
u
r 
A
n
n
u
al
 A
u
d
it
 L
et
te
r 
('L

et
te
r'
) 
su
m
m
ar
is
es
 t
h
e 
ke
y 
fi
n
d
in
gs
 a
ri
si
n
g 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
w
o
rk
 t
h
at
 w
e 
h
av
e 
ca
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
at
 T
o
rb
ay

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
('t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l')
 f
o
r 
th
e 

ye
ar
 e
n
d
ed
 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
3:

•
au
d
it
in
g 
th
e 
20
12
/
13
 a
cc
o
u
n
ts
 a
n
d
 W

h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
 

su
b
m
is
si
o
n
 (
S
ec
ti
o
n
 t
w
o
)

•
as
se
ss
in
g 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 
se
cu
ri
n
g 
ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
 (
S
ec
ti
o
n
 t
h
re
e)
.

T
h
e 
L
et
te
r 
is
 in
te
n
d
ed
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
e 
ke
y 
m
es
sa
ge
s 
to
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
an
d
 e
xt
er
n
al
 

st
ak
eh
o
ld
er
s,
 in
cl
u
d
in
g 
m
em

b
er
s 
o
f 
th
e 
p
u
b
lic
. W

e 
re
p
o
rt
ed
 t
h
e 
d
et
ai
le
d
 f
in
d
in
gs
 

fr
o
m
 o
u
r 
au
d
it
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 t
h
e 
au
d
it
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e 
in
 o
u
r 
A
u
d
it
 F
in
d
in
gs
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 2
5 

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
3.

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il

T
h
is
 L
et
te
r 
h
as
 b
ee
n
 p
re
p
ar
ed
 i
n
 t
h
e 
co
n
te
xt
 o
f 
th
e 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 
o
f 
R
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 

o
f 
A
u
d
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 A
u
d
it
ed
 B
o
d
ie
s 
is
su
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 (
w
w
w
.a
u
d
it
-

co
m
m
is
si
o
n
.g
o
v.
u
k)
.

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
is
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
re
p
ar
in
g 
an
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
in
g 
it
s 
ac
co
u
n
ts
, a
cc
o
m
p
an
ie
d
 

b
y 
an
 A
n
n
u
al
 G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 S
ta
te
m
en
t.
 I
t 
is
 a
ls
o
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
u
tt
in
g 
in
 p
la
ce
 

p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 t
o
 s
ec
u
re
 e
co
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 it
s 
u
se
 o
f 

re
so
u
rc
es
 (
V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
).

O
u
r 
an
n
u
al
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
cl
u
d
es
 n
at
io
n
al
ly
 p
re
sc
ri
b
ed
 a
n
d
 l
o
ca
lly
 

d
et
er
m
in
ed
 w
o
rk
, h
as
 b
ee
n
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
n
 i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 t
h
at
 

w
e 
is
su
ed
 o
n
 2
5 
A
p
ri
l 
20
13
 a
n
d
 w
as
 c
o
n
d
u
ct
ed
 i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
's
 C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e 
('t
h
e 
C
o
d
e'
),
 I
n
te
rn
at
io
n
al
 S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
o
n
 

A
u
d
it
in
g 
(U
K
 a
n
d
 I
re
la
n
d
) 
an
d
 o
th
er
 g
u
id
an
ce
 i
ss
u
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
.

A
u
d
it
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s

T
h
e 
au
d
it
 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n
s 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e 
h
av
e 
p
ro
vi
d
ed
 in
 r
el
at
io
n
 t
o
 2
01
2/
13
 a
re
 a
s 

fo
llo
w
s:

•
an
 u
n
q
u
al
if
ie
d
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts
 c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g 
th
ey
 g
iv
e 
a 
tr
u
e 
an
d
 f
ai
r 

vi
ew

 o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 f
in
an
ci
al
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
s 
at
 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 
an
d
 i
ts
 in
co
m
e 

an
d
 e
xp
en
d
it
u
re
 f
o
r 
th
e 
ye
ar

•
an
 u
n
q
u
al
if
ie
d
 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 in
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 

se
cu
ri
n
g 
ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
 

•
an
 u
n
q
u
al
if
ie
d
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
co
u
n
ci
l's
 W

h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
 

su
b
m
is
si
o
n

O
u
r 
w
o
rk
 o
n
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 o
f 
gr
an
t 
cl
ai
m
s 
is
 o
n
-g
o
in
g.
 O
u
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
at
e 
h
as
 n
o
t 

id
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
n
y 
is
su
es
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e 
w
is
h
 t
o
 h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
. T

h
e 
d
et
ai
le
d
 f
in
d
in
gs
 o
f 
o
u
r 

w
o
rk
 w
ill
 b
e 
re
p
o
rt
ed
 in
 o
u
r 
G
ra
n
t 
C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 r
ep
o
rt
 u
p
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
u
r 

w
o
rk
.

Page 17



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

5

K
e
y
 a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n

W
e 
su
m
m
ar
is
e 
h
er
e 
th
e 
ke
y 
m
es
sa
ge
s 
ar
is
in
g 
fr
o
m
 o
u
r 
au
d
it
 f
o
r 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
to
 

co
n
si
d
er
 a
s 
w
el
l 
as
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g 
ke
y 
is
su
es
 f
ac
in
g 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
in
 t
h
e 
fu
tu
re
.

T
h
e 
d
ra
ft
 f
in
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 w
er
e 
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
 in
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
n
at
io
n
al
 

d
ea
d
lin
e 
o
f 
th
e 
30
 J
u
n
e.
 W

e
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
n
 e
rr
o
r 
d
u
ri
n
g 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
,b
u
t 
th
is
 d
id
 n
o
t 

im
p
ac
t 
o
n
 t
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
ed
 y
ea
r 
en
d
 s
u
rp
lu
s 
o
f 
£
0.
4m

A
lt
h
o
u
gh
 w
e 
is
su
ed
 a
n
 u
n
q
u
al
if
ie
d
 V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 (
V
fM

) 
co
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 w
e 
d
id
 

id
en
ti
fy
 a
re
as
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
sh
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
si
d
er
.. 
F
u
rt
h
er
 d
et
ai
ls
 i
n
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 

th
es
e 
ca
n
 b
e 
fo
u
n
d
 in
 S
ec
ti
o
n
 3
.

O
u
r 
au
d
it
 o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 W

h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
 r
et
u
rn
 (
W
G
A
) 

id
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
 d
if
fe
re
n
ce
 in
 t
h
e 
b
al
an
ce
s 
b
et
w
ee
n
 T
o
rb
ay
 a
n
d
 D
ev
o
n
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 

in
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
p
re
 1
99
8 
d
is
cr
et
io
n
ar
y 
p
en
si
o
n
 p
ay
m
en
ts
.  
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
n
ee
d
s 
to
 

en
su
re
 t
h
at
 s
te
p
s 
ar
e 
ta
ke
n
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
ss
 t
h
is
 in
co
n
si
st
en
cy
.

L
o
o
ki
n
g 
fo
rw
ar
d
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
fa
ce
s 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
ch
al
le
n
ge
s 
in
 t
h
at
:-

•
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
fa
ce
s 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 p
re
ss
u
re
s 
o
ve
r 
th
e 
n
ex
t 
3 
ye
ar
s 
an
d
 i
s 

cu
rr
en
tl
y 
d
ev
el
o
p
in
g 
d
et
ai
le
d
 s
av
in
g 
p
la
n
s 
to
 a
d
d
re
ss
 a
n
y 
sh
o
rt
fa
lls
; a
n
d

•
in
cr
ea
se
d
 d
em

an
d
 f
o
r 
se
rv
ic
es
 w
ill
 p
u
t 
ad
d
it
io
n
al
 p
re
ss
u
re
s 
o
n
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 

b
u
d
ge
t.

A
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

T
h
is
 L
et
te
r 
h
as
 b
ee
n
 a
gr
ee
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 H
ea
d
 –
F
in
an
ce
.

an
d
 w
ill
 p
re
se
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
o
n
 2
2 
Ja
n
u
ar
y 
20
14
.

W
e 
w
o
u
ld
 li
ke
 r
ec
o
rd
 o
u
r 
ap
p
re
ci
at
io
n
 f
o
r 
th
e 
as
si
st
an
ce
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
p
er
at
io
n

p
ro
vi
d
ed
 t
o
 u
s 
d
u
ri
n
g 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
 b
y 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 s
ta
ff
. G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
3

Page 18



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
:

A
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

Page 19



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

7

A
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts

A
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

T
h
e 
ke
y 
fi
n
d
in
gs
 o
f 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
 o
f 
th
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts
 a
re
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
ed
 b
el
o
w
:

P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
p
re
se
n
te
d
 u
s 
w
it
h
 d
ra
ft
 a
cc
o
u
n
ts
 o
n
 2
8 
Ju
n
e 
20
13
, i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e 
n
at
io
n
al
 d
ea
d
lin
e.
 A
p
p
ro
p
ri
at
e 
w
o
rk
in
g 
p
ap
er
s 
w
er
e 
m
ad
e 
av
ai
la
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
st
ar
t 
o
f 
th
e 
au
d
it
 f
ie
ld
w
o
rk
, w

h
ic
h
 c
o
m
m
en
ce
d
 1
 J
u
ly
 2
01
3.
  

T
h
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts
 w
er
e 
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
 t
o
 a
 g
o
o
d
 s
ta
n
d
ar
d
 a
n
d
 w
er
e 
su
p
p
o
rt
ed
 b
y 
go
o
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g 
p
ap
er
s.
  
A
ll 
re
q
u
es
ts
 f
o
r 
ad
d
it
io
n
al
 i
n
fo
rm

at
io
n
 w
er
e 
d
ea
lt
 w
it
h
 

p
ro
m
p
tl
y 
b
y 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ce
 t
ea
m
.

Is
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

O
u
r 
au
d
it
 o
f 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 f
o
r 
au
d
it
 d
id
 n
o
t 
 id
en
ti
fy
 a
n
y 

er
ro
rs
 t
h
at
 a
d
ju
st
ed
 t
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
ed
 s
u
rp
lu
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 o
f 
£
0.
4m

.  
W
e 
d
id
 

h
o
w
ev
er
 i
d
en
ti
fy
 a
n
 e
rr
o
r 
th
at
 r
ed
u
ce
d
 t
h
e 
b
al
an
ce
 s
h
ee
t 
b
y 
£
2.
95
m
. T

h
is
 a
ro
se
 

as
 t
h
e 
V
al
u
er
s
re
p
o
rt
 in
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 f
ix
ed
 a
ss
et
s 
in
cl
u
d
ed
 a
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 A
id
ed
 s
ch
o
o
l w

h
ic
h
 i
s 
n
o
t 
a 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
as
se
t.
 T
h
is
 r
es
u
lt
ed
 in
 a
n
 

o
ve
rs
ta
te
m
en
t 
o
f 
P
ro
p
er
ty
 P
la
n
t 
an
d
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t 
(P
P
E
) 
an
d
 t
h
e 
re
va
lu
at
io
n
 

re
se
rv
e.
 

A
n
 a
m
en
d
m
en
t 
w
as
 a
ls
o
 m
ad
e 
to
 d
is
cl
o
su
re
s 
in
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
re
la
te
d
 p
ar
ty
 

tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 

T
h
er
e 
w
er
e 
n
o
 n
o
n
-a
d
ju
st
ed
 m
is
st
at
em

en
ts
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 A
n
n
u
al
 G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 S
ta
te
m
en
t 
(A
G
S
) 
co
m
p
lie
d
 w
it
h
 

re
q
u
ir
em

en
ts
 o
f 
th
e 
C
o
d
e 
o
f 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 
o
n
 L
o
ca
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g 
in
 t
h
e 

U
n
it
ed
 K
in
gd
o
m
 (
C
IP
F
A
/
L
A
S
A
A
C
) 
an
d
 c
o
n
ta
in
ed
 t
h
e 
el
em

en
ts
 a
s 

p
re
sc
ri
b
ed
 in
 D
el
iv
er
in
g 
G
oo
d 
G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
in
 L
oc
al
 G
ov
er
nm

en
t:
 F
ra
m
ew
or
k
.  

W
h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 r
e
tu
rn
 (
W
G
A
)

O
u
r 
au
d
it
 o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 W

h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
 r
et
u
rn
 (
W
G
A
) 

id
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
 d
if
fe
re
n
ce
 in
 t
h
e 
b
al
an
ce
s 
b
et
w
ee
n
 T
o
rb
ay
 a
n
d
 D
ev
o
n
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
in
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
p
re
 1
99
8 
d
is
cr
et
io
n
ar
y 
p
en
si
o
n
 p
ay
m
en
ts
.  
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 

n
ee
d
s 
to
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
at
 s
te
p
s 
ar
e 
ta
ke
n
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
ss
 t
h
is
 in
co
n
si
st
en
cy
.

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

P
ri
o
r 
to
 g
iv
in
g 
o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts
, w

e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 r
ep
o
rt
 

si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
m
at
te
rs
 a
ri
si
n
g 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
au
d
it
 t
o
 't
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
ge
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce
' 

(d
ef
in
ed
 a
s 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
at
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l)
. W

e 
p
re
se
n
te
d
 o
u
r 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
o
n
 2
5 
S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
3 
an
d
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
e 
o
n
ly
 t
h
e 
ke
y 

m
es
sa
ge
s 
in
 t
h
is
 L
et
te
r.

W
e 
is
su
ed
 a
n
 u
n
q
u
al
if
ie
d
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 2
01
2/
13
 a
cc
o
u
n
ts
 o
n
 2
6 

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
3,
 m
ee
ti
n
g 
th
e 
d
ea
d
lin
e 
se
t 
b
y 
th
e 
D
ep
ar
tm

en
t 
fo
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
an
d
 L
o
ca
l 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t.
  
O
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 c
o
n
fi
rm

s 
th
at
 t
h
e 

ac
co
u
n
ts
 g
iv
e 
a 
tr
u
e 
an
d
 f
ai
r 
vi
ew

 o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 f
in
an
ci
al
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
f 

th
e 
in
co
m
e 
an
d
 e
xp
en
d
it
u
re
 r
ec
o
rd
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l. 

Page 20



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
:

V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

Page 21



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

9

V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 

S
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk

T
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
d
es
cr
ib
es
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 t
o
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 p
ro
p
er
 

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 t
o
:

•
se
cu
re
 e
co
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es

•
en
su
re
 p
ro
p
er
 s
te
w
ar
d
sh
ip
 a
n
d
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce

•
re
vi
ew

 r
eg
u
la
rl
y 
th
e 
ad
eq
u
ac
y 
an
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
o
f 
th
es
e 
ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
.

W
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 g
iv
e 
a 
V
F
M
 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 b
as
ed
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
tw
o
 c
ri
te
ri
a 

sp
ec
if
ie
d
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
u
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 

u
n
d
er
 t
h
e 
C
o
d
e:

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
a
n
g
em

en
ts
 i
n
 p
la
ce
 f
o
r 
se
cu
ri
n
g
 f
in
a
n
ci
a
l 

re
si
li
en
ce
. 
W
e 
co
n
si
d
er
 w
h
et
h
er
  
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
as
 r
o
b
u
st
 s
ys
te
m
s 
an
d
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 t
o
 

m
an
ag
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 r
is
ks
 a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s,
 a
n
d
 t
o
 s
ec
u
re
 a
 s
ta
b
le
 f
in
an
ci
al
 

p
o
si
ti
o
n
 t
h
at
 e
n
ab
le
s 
it
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e 
to
 o
p
er
at
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
fo
re
se
ea
b
le
 f
u
tu
re
.

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
a
n
g
em

en
ts
 f
o
r 
ch
a
ll
en
g
in
g
 h
o
w
 i
t 
se
c
u
re
s 

ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s.
 W

e 
co
n
si
d
er
 w
h
et
h
er
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
is
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
si
n
g 
it
s 
re
so
u
rc
es
 w
it
h
in
 t
ig
h
te
r 
b
u
d
ge
ts
, f
o
r 
ex
am

p
le
 b
y 
ac
h
ie
vi
n
g 
co
st
 

re
d
u
ct
io
n
s 
an
d
 b
y 
im
p
ro
vi
n
g 
ef
fi
ci
en
cy
 a
n
d
 p
ro
d
u
ct
iv
it
y.

K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s

S
ec
u
ri
n
g
 f
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
re
si
li
en
ce

W
e 
h
av
e 
u
n
d
er
ta
ke
n
 a
 r
ev
ie
w
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
n
si
d
er
ed
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 a
ga
in
st
 

th
e 
th
re
e 
ex
p
ec
te
d
 c
h
ar
ac
te
ri
st
ic
s 
o
f 
p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 a
s 
d
ef
in
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
:

•
fi
n
an
ci
al
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce

•
fi
n
an
ci
al
 p
la
n
n
in
g 

•
fi
n
an
ci
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
l.

O
ve
ra
ll 
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
at
 t
h
e 
ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 w
er
e 
ad
eq
u
at
e.
  
H
o
w
ev
er
 

w
e 
d
id
 n
o
te
 t
h
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
ar
ea
s 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
sh
o
u
ld
  
co
n
si
d
er
:-

•
to
 e
n
su
re
 a
n
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
  
as
su
ra
n
ce
 f
ra
m
ew

o
rk
 is
 in
 p
la
ce
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
n
ee
d
s 
to
 

en
su
re
 t
h
at
 t
h
e 
n
ew

 r
is
k 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 
sy
st
em

 b
ec
o
m
es
 f
u
lly
 e
m
b
ed
d
ed
 

th
ro
u
gh
o
u
t 
th
e 
o
rg
an
is
at
io
n
;

•
u
se
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
re
se
rv
es
 n
ee
d
s 
to
 b
e 
m
an
ag
ed
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
at
el
y 
an
d
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 

sh
o
u
ld
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
ei
r 
u
se
 t
o
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
is
 is
 t
h
e 
ca
se
; a
n
d

•
al
th
o
u
gh
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
as
 id
en
ti
fi
ed
 t
h
e 
le
ve
l 
o
f 
sa
vi
n
gs
 r
eq
u
ir
ed
 o
ve
r 
th
e 

n
ex
t 
2 
ye
ar
s 
it
 i
s 
cu
rr
en
tl
y 
in
 t
h
e 
p
ro
ce
ss
 o
f 
d
ev
el
o
p
in
g 
d
et
ai
le
d
 p
la
n
s 
to
 

su
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
es
e.

F
u
rt
h
er
 d
et
ai
ls
 a
re
 p
ro
vi
d
ed
 in
 o
u
r 
F
in
an
ci
al
 R
es
ili
en
ce
 r
ep
o
rt
 is
su
ed
 in
 

S
ep
te
m
b
er
20
13
.

C
h
a
ll
en
g
in
g
 e
co
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s

W
e 
h
av
e 
re
vi
ew

ed
 w
h
et
h
er
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
as
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
se
d
 it
s 
re
so
u
rc
es
 t
o
 t
ak
e 

ac
co
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e 
ti
gh
te
r 
co
n
st
ra
in
ts
 it
 i
s 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 o
p
er
at
e 
w
it
h
in
 a
n
d
 w
h
et
h
er
 i
t 

h
as
 a
ch
ie
ve
d
 c
o
st
 r
ed
u
ct
io
n
s 
an
d
 i
m
p
ro
ve
d
 p
ro
d
u
ct
iv
it
y 
an
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
ci
es
.

O
v
e
ra
ll
 V
F
M
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

O
n
 t
h
e 
b
as
is
 o
f 
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
, a
n
d
 h
av
in
g 
re
ga
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e 
gu
id
an
ce
 o
n
 t
h
e 
sp
ec
if
ie
d
 

cr
it
er
ia
 p
u
b
lis
h
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
, w

e 
ar
e 
sa
ti
sf
ie
d
 t
h
at
 i
n
 a
ll 

si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
re
sp
ec
ts
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 t
o
 s
ec
u
re
 

ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 it
s 
u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
 f
o
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 e
n
d
in
g 

31
 M

ar
ch
 2
01
3.

Page 22



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

10

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 23



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

11

F
e
e
s

P
e

r 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n £

A
c

tu
a

l 
fe

e
s

 

£

A
u

d
it
 F

e
e

1
3

5
,0

0
0

1
3

5
,0

0
0

G
ra

n
t 
c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 f
e

e
 

(i
n

d
ic

a
ti
v
e

) 
*

1
8

,6
7

5
1

8
.6

7
5

T
o

ta
l 
fe

e
s

1
5

3
,6

7
5

1
5

3
,6

7
5

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
: 
 R
ep
o
rt
s 
is
su
ed
 a
n
d
 f
ee
s

W
e 
co
n
fi
rm

 b
el
o
w
 t
h
e 
fe
e 
ch
ar
ge
d
 f
o
r 
th
e 
au
d
it
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
er
e 
w
er
e 
n
o
 f
ee
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
p
ro
vi
si
o
n
 o
f 
n
o
n
 a
u
d
it
 s
er
vi
ce
s.

F
e
e
s
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

e
e

s
 £

N
o

n
e

 
N

il

*
O
u
r 
gr
an
t 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 w
o
rk
 i
s 
cu
rr
en
tl
y 
o
n
-g
o
in
g,
 w
e 
w
il
l 

re
p
o
rt
 b
ac
k
 t
o
 y
o
u
 i
f 
th
er
e 
is
 a
n
y 
v
ar
ia
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e 
ab
o
v
e 
fe
e.

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d

R
e

p
o

rt
D

a
te

 i
s

s
u

e
d

A
u

d
it
 P

la
n

2
5

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3

A
u

d
it
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

2
5

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
1

5
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

T
B

C
–

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

V
fM

 –
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l R
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
2

5
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3

A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r

7
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3

Page 24



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

-
T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
 | 

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

Page 25



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 r
ep
o
rt
 2
01
2/
13

fo
r 
T
o
rb
ay
 C
o
u
n
ci
l

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

A
lu

n
W

il
li

a
m

s

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
L

e
a

d

T
0

1
1

7
 3

0
5

 7
7

9
7

E
 

a
lu

n
.g

.w
ill

ia
m

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

S
u

e
 H

ic
k

A
u

d
it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

T
0

1
1

7
 3

0
5

 7
8

7
2

E
 

s
u

e
.h

ic
k
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

2
n
d

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

Agenda Item 7

Page 26



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

2

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e
c
ti
o
n

P
a
g
e

1.
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

4

2.
R
es
u
lt
s 
o
f 
o
ur
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 

7

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
  
D
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 f
o
r 
20
12
/
13

9

Page 27



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
:

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
R

e
s

u
lt

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

Page 28



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

4

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

W
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 c
er
ti
fy
 c
er
ta
in
 o
f 
th
e 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y 
T
o
rb
ay
 

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
('t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l')
. T

h
is
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 t
yp
ic
al
ly
 t
ak
es
 p
la
ce
 s
ix
 t
o
 n
in
e 
m
o
n
th
s 

af
te
r 
th
e 
cl
ai
m
 p
er
io
d
 a
n
d
 r
ep
re
se
n
ts
 a
 f
in
al
 b
u
t 
im
p
o
rt
an
t 
p
ar
t 
o
f 
th
e 
p
ro
ce
ss
 t
o
 

co
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 e
n
ti
tl
em

en
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
in
g.

W
e 
h
av
e 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 t
h
re
e 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 y
ea
r 
20
12
/
13
 r
el
at
in
g 

to
 e
xp
en
d
it
u
re
 o
f 
£
12
7.
9 
m
ill
io
n
. 

T
h
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
es
 o
u
r 
o
ve
ra
ll 
as
se
ss
m
en
t 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 in
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
th
e 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 p
ro
ce
ss
 a
n
d
 d
ra
w
s 
at
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
m
at
te
rs
 i
n
 r
el
at
io
n
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
al
 c
la
im
s.

A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
to
 c
e
r
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

A
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 a
re
 p
re
sc
ri
b
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
, w

h
ic
h
 

ag
re
es
 t
h
e 
sc
o
p
e 
o
f 
th
e 
w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 e
ac
h
 r
el
ev
an
t 
go
ve
rn
m
en
t 
d
ep
ar
tm

en
t 
o
r 

ag
en
cy
, a
n
d
 i
ss
u
es
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
 w
it
h
 a
 C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 I
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 (
C
I)
 f
o
r 
ea
ch
 s
p
ec
if
ic
 

cl
ai
m
 o
r 
re
tu
rn
. 

O
u
r 
ap
p
ro
ac
h
 t
o
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
, t
h
e 
ro
le
s 
an
d
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 o
f 
th
e 
va
ri
o
u
s 

p
ar
ti
es
 in
vo
lv
ed
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
sc
o
p
e 
o
f 
th
e 
w
o
rk
 w
e 
p
er
fo
rm

 w
er
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
u
r 

C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 i
ss
u
ed
 t
o
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
in
 J
u
n
e 
20
13
.

K
e
y
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

A
 s
u
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 
al
l 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
su
b
je
ct
 t
o
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 i
s 
p
ro
vi
d
ed
 a
t 

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
. T

h
e 
ke
y 
m
es
sa
ge
s 
fr
o
m
 o
u
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 w
o
rk
 a
re
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
ed
 in
 

th
e 
ta
b
le
 b
el
o
w
 a
n
d
 s
et
 o
u
t 
in
 d
et
ai
l 
in
 t
h
e 
n
ex
t 
se
ct
io
n
 o
f 
th
e 
re
p
o
rt
.

A
sp
ec
t
o
f 

ce
rt
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
em

en
ts

K
ey
 M

es
sa
g
es

R
A
G

ra
ti
n
g

S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 &

 

ce
rt
if
ic
a
ti
o
n

A
ll 
cl
ai
m
s
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
w
er
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 a
n
d

ce
rt
if
ie
d
 b
y 
th
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 d
ea
d
lin
es
.

�

A
cc
u
ra
cy

o
f 
cl
a
im

 

fo
rm

s 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

th
e 
a
u
d
it
o
r 

(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 

a
m
en
d
m
en
ts
 &

 

q
u
a
li
fi
ca
ti
o
n
s)

A
ll
cl
ai
m
 a
n
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e 

au
d
it
o
r 
w
er
e 
ac
cu
ra
te
 a
n
d
 n
o
 a
m
en
d
m
en
ts
 

w
er
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
.

�

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
er
s

W
o
rk
in
g 
p
ap
er
s 
w
er
e 
p
ro
vi
d
ed
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

al
l 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s.
 A

ll 
re
q
u
es
ts
 f
o
r 

ad
d
it
io
n
al
 i
n
fo
rm

at
io
n
 w
er
e 
d
ea
lt
 w
it
h
 

p
ro
m
p
tl
y.

�

Page 29



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

5

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

A
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

W
e 
w
o
u
ld
 li
ke
 t
o
 t
ak
e 
th
is
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
to
 t
h
an
k 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
o
ff
ic
er
s 
fo
r 
th
ei
r 

as
si
st
an
ce
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
p
er
at
io
n
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
co
u
rs
e 
o
f 
th
e 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 p
ro
ce
ss
.

G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P

D
ec
em

b
er
 2
01
3

Page 30



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
:

R
es
u
lt
s 
o
f 
o
u
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 w
o
rk

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
R

e
s

u
lt

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

Page 31



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

7

R
es
u
lt
s 
o
f 
o
u
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 w
o
rk

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

w
o
rk

K
e
y
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s

W
e 
h
av
e 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 t
h
re
e 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 y
ea
r 
20
12
/
13
 r
el
at
in
g 

to
 e
xp
en
d
it
u
re
 o
f 
£
12
7.
9 
m
ill
io
n
. 

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 in
 p
re
p
ar
in
g 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
is
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
ed
 b
el
o
w
: 

T
h
is
 a
n
al
ys
is
 o
f 
p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 s
h
o
w
s 
th
at
:

•
as
 p
er
 t
h
e 
p
re
vi
o
u
s 
ye
ar
 a
ll 
cl
ai
m
s/
re
tu
rn
s 
w
er
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 a
n
d
 c
er
ti
fi
ed
 b
y 
th
e 

re
q
u
ir
ed
 d
ea
d
lin
es
;

•
n
o
 c
la
im
s/
re
tu
rn
s 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 a
m
en
d
in
g,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
a 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
fr
o
m
 

th
e 
p
re
vi
o
u
s 
ye
ar
; a
n
d

•
n
o
 c
la
im
s/
re
tu
rn
s 
w
er
e 
q
u
al
if
ie
d
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
an
 i
m
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
n
 t
h
e 
p
re
vi
o
u
s 

ye
ar
.

D
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
th
e 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
al
l 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
ar
e 
in
cl
u
d
ed
 a
t 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
.

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 

O
u
r 
w
o
rk
 h
as
 n
o
t 
 i
d
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
n
y 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
 i
ss
u
es
 in
 r
el
at
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 a
n
d
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
al
 g
ra
n
t 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s.

C
e
r
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
e
e
s

T
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 s
et
 a
n
 i
n
d
ic
at
iv
e 
sc
al
e 
fe
e 
fo
r 
gr
an
t 
cl
ai
m
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 

b
as
ed
 o
n
 2
01
0/
11
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 f
ee
s 
fo
r 
ea
ch
 a
u
d
it
ed
 b
o
d
y.
  
T
h
e 
in
d
ic
at
iv
e 
sc
al
e 
fe
e 

fo
r 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
fo
r 
20
12
/
13
 is
 £
18
,6
75
. A

n
y 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
va
ri
an
ce
s 
to
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e 

d
is
cu
ss
ed
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 H
ea
d
 –
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 r
ep
o
rt
ed
 t
o
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e.

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

m
ea
su
re

T
a
rg
et

A
ch
ie
ve
m
en
t 

in
 2
01
2/
13

A
ch
ie
ve
m
en
t 

in
 2
01
1/
12

D
ir
ec
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
tr
a
ve
l

N
o
.

%
N
o
.

%

C
la
im
s 
su
b
m
it
te
d

o
n
 t
im
e

10
0%

3
10
0

3
10
0

C
la
im
s 
ce
rt
if
ie
d

o
n
 t
im
e

10
0%

3
10
0

3
10
0

C
la
im
s 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

am
en
d
m
en
t

10
0%

3
10
0

2
66
.6
6

C
la
im
s 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

q
u
al
if
ic
at
io
n

10
0%

3
10
0

1
33
.3
3

Page 32



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

8

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 33



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

9

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
: D

et
ai
ls
 o
f 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 f
o
r 
20
12
/
13

C
la

im
o

r 
re

tu
rn

V
a

lu
e

A
m

e
n

d
e

d
?

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t
(£

)
Q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

?
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

H
o
u
si
n
g 
an
d
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 
ta
x 

b
en
ef
it
 s
ch
em

e

£
87
,4
75
,8
0
6

N
o

N
/
A

N
o

N
o
n
e

N
at
io
n
al
 n
o
n
-d
o
m
es
ti
c 

ra
te
s 
re
tu
rn

£
35
,6
12
,4
7
9

N
o

N
/
A

N
o

N
o
n
e

T
ea
ch
er
s’
 p
en
si
o
n
s 

re
tu
rn

£
4,
84
4,
62
3

N
o

N
/
A

N
o

N
o
n
e

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 34



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 T

or
ba

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
|  

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

Page 35



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Report 

2013/14  

Six Month Monitoring Report 

Torbay Council 
 

October 2013 

 

 

 

Not Protectively Marked 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Auditing for achievement 

Agenda Item 8

Page 36



 

Devon Audit Partnership 
 

The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement 
comprising of Plymouth, Torbay and Devon councils.  We aim to be recognised as a high 
quality internal audit service in the public sector.  We work with our partners by providing a 
professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting their challenges, 
managing their risks and achieving their goals.  In carrying out our work we are required to 
comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and other best practice 
and professional standards.  

 

The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to 
all; if you have any comments or suggestions on our service, processes or standards, the 
Head of Partnership would be pleased to receive them at 
robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk 

  

Confidentiality and Disclosure Clause 
 

This report is protectively marked in accordance with the National Protective Marking 
Scheme. It is accepted that issues raised may well need to be discussed with other 
officers within the Council, the report itself should only be copied/circulated/disclosed to 

 

 

third party for any reliance they might place upon it. 
 

Page 37



 

1 

 

1 Introduction  
 

 This report provides a summary of performance in the first six months against the 
internal audit plan for the 2013/14 financial year, highlighting the key areas of work 
undertaken and summarising our main findings and audit opinions. 
 
The key objectives of the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) are to provide assurance to 
the Commissioners, the Chief Executive and Audit Committee on the adequacy and 
security of the systems and controls operating within the Council.  

The level of risk associated with each of the areas in Appendix A has been 
determined either from the Local Authorities Strategic / Operational Risk Register 
(LARR), or the Audit Needs Assessment (ANA).  Where the audit was undertaken at 
the request of client, it has not been risk assessed.  Assurance and 
recommendations should be considered in light of these risk levels and the impact 
this has on achievement of corporate / service goals. 
 

2 Opinion 
  
 In our opinion, and based upon our audit work in this and previous years, we 

consider that adequate controls are in place to control operations in the Council.   
 
Where weaknesses have been identified management have agreed these findings 
and have either agreed the recommendations or accepted the associated risks.  
Where management actions have been agreed and as appropriate, we shall 
undertake follow up work to ensure that the identified risks have been mitigated. 

3 Performance against the Plan 
 

 Overall, we have made adequate progress in the first six months of 2013/14, with 
64% of the planned audits commenced (against expected rate of 50%) and 45% of 
audit fieldwork completed (against expected rate of 45%). A more detailed 
breakdown of performance against the plan is shown at appendix B. 

It i
provides independent assurance that our service is providing good value to the 
Council (please see appendix C). 

Due to the fluidity of audit delivery some audits relating to the previous year 
(2012/13) have been brought to conclusion in 2013/14. 

At this stage we remain confident that we will be able to deliver the internal audit plan 
as expected. 

A summary of progress made against the plan, including various performance 
indicators for Internal Audit, is attached at Appendix B 

  

Page 38



 

2 

 

4 Executive Summary 
 

Overall, management continue to remain aware of strategic risks and have 
established mitigating controls, as demonstrated through the progress in developing 
and embedding the revised strategic risk management methodology. Despite 
reductions in resources and pressures from operational delivery and system 
changes, commitment remains good to ensure services are delivered and operational 
risks mitigated.   

Previous audit follow up activity has shown positive engagement and commitment 
from management to improving the control environment.  Further follow up work will 
be undertaken to confirm that this impetus is being maintained. 

Based on work performed during 2013/14 to date, Internal Audit is able to provide 

control environment. 

The audit plan is progressing in line with expectations and management continue to 
be receptive and responsive to our work.  Appendix A details the assurance opinions 
for individual audits so far completed in 2013/14. The definitions of the assurance 
opinion ratings are given in Appendix D. 

Individual Executive Summaries follow to provide specific detail on directorates and 
identify where we have concerns that are impacting the current control environment. 

Operations & Finance - we are able to report that material systems controls have 
been either been maintained, or improvements are being made to address previously 
identified weaknesses.  Whilst a number of weaknesses exist, management are 
aware of these issues, and have either accepted the related risk, or are taking action 
to address them. 

A has been maintained on a number of on-going projects including 
the new payroll system which has been subject to a recent delay. 

The nature of ICT continues to be a constantly changing environment with continued 
emerging technologies and threats.  The ICT team provide a good level of service in 
maintaining the ICT infrastructure within the resources available to them but risks to 
the service remain high.  A key strategic risk in relation to ICT remains the ability to 
maintain the infrastructure going forward particularly in light of the continued budget 
pressures.   

ervice teams with a 
framework of guidance, advice, systems and templates to enable those departments 
to procure appropriately.  However, there was evidence in 2012/13 that not all 
departments are making effective use of these and may be breaching statutory and 
Council rules.  Management responses to these findings have yet to be provided, 
and these issues will be audited in further detail during 2013/14. 

Place - based on audits previously completed and on indications from the follow up 
activity that we reported in August 2013, we have found that the majority of areas 
audited within Place are demonstrating an improvement in the control environment.   
Whilst a number of weaknesses exist, management are aware of these issues, and 
have either accepted the related risk, or are taking action to address them.   

In addition to these key areas, audits were undertaken of specific functions / 

number of on-going projects including the SW Devon Waste Partnership PFI project.  

Page 39



 

3 

 

 
Public Health  - based on audits completed to date, we are yet to be able to report 
that there are adequate controls in this Directorate.  However, a 

Licensing, and Trading Standards.  This is primarily due to food safety inspection 
levels. Action will be taken in April to address these concerns.   

 
 - our audit of Fostering arrangements has highlighted issues 

with regard to the timely completion and processing of documentation in respect of 
in-house foster care placements ending. Payments had continued to be made to 
foster carers due to the instruction to cease payment not being promptly provided. 
The situation has been further exacerbated by lack of recovery action to reclaim such 
overpayments which in certain individual cases relate to significant amounts of 
money. 

The review of the financial and administrative processes and procedures in place at 
Parkfield identified significant shortcomings in a number of areas; income collection 
and reconciliation, inventory management and control along with issues around 
contracting and the compliance with and following of the requirements of financial 
regulations and contract standing orders. 
 
Schools  - We have made progress in the delivery of our audit plan to schools 
although the larger proportion of the work will, as planned, be in the second half of 
the year. Schools have again been very appreciative of the quality of our service. The 
requirements to meet the challenges through change to the SFVS are significant. We 
are focusing all of our effort to achieve the targets and support schools to the fullest 
of our ability. 

Good Standard - our opinion is that the systems and controls in schools mitigate the 
risks identified in many areas. However, there are risks exposed in key areas which 
reduce overall assurance.  

The key matters arising from the audits are the:  

 understanding of financial management by governors and skills 
assessment as evidenced by the requirements of the Standard; 

 demonstrable financing of plans for raising standards and attainment; and, 
 absence of financial benchmarking. 

Analysis of the results of audit and SFVS can be found at appendix A1. 
 

5 Irregularities 
 

 There have been a number of issues reported to us for investigation and resolution. 
Some of the key issues reviewed are as follows 
 
Operations & Finance  we have assisted in two new irregularity investigations. 
These related to a concern from management that there may be abuse of internet 
access during working hours within one department, and assistance provided to the 
Corporate Debt team in pursuing (via the police) a debtor who had attempted to 
pervert the recovery of debt via perjury.   

Place - we reviewed two issues; one related to suspected internet abuse by staff at 
one of the libraries, and another being alleged abuse of a Blue Badge.  Both cases 
have now been reported to management, investigated and now closed.   

Page 40



 

4 

 

 

Public Health - we are pleased to report that there have been no significant 
irregularities brought to our attention for the 2013/14 year so far. 

 - we have been involved in two irregularity investigations. 
These related to; incorrect payments to school escorts and invoice payments not 
appropriately authorised.  

All of the cases have now been closed, with either no evidence to support further 
action, or otherwise reported to management for appropriate action. 

Schools - There have been no notable irregularities to report upon although we 
received a whistleblowing allegation at a primary school which was not founded. 

NFI - As part of the 2012/13 NFI Data Matching Exercise, data matching reports were 
provided to relevant Council departments for further investigation.  These include 
data from housing benefits, creditor payments, salaries, insurance, blue badges, care 
homes and various licences administrated by the Authority.   

Torbay Council has received a total of 5,392 matches, of which 1,824 are 
recommended for review.  The exercise, which is run every two years by the Audit 
Commission, requires all councils to provide data for cross-matching with information 
supplied by other organisations, such as the Department for Works and Pensions 
and the NHS, to identify potential cases of fraud and error.  Progress through 
2013/14 has been monitored by Internal Audit in addition to its own review and 
investigation work on payroll and creditor payment matches, with completion of the 
exercise to be managed by January 2014, in accordance with Audit Commission 
timescales.  To date 932 matches have been reviewed - 51% of those 
recommended, and £23,868 identified in savings from detected errors / frauds.  Work 
will continue until January 2014 towards completion of the exercise. 

6 Customer Satisfaction 

 

During the period we issued client survey forms with our final reports. The results of 
the surveys returned are, although low in number, very good and again are very 

across our services, see appendix C. It is very pleasing to report that our clients 
continue to rate the overall usefulness of the audit and the helpfulness of our auditors 
highly.  

7 Inherent Limitations 
 

 The opinions contained within this report are based on our examination of restricted 
samples of transactions / records and our discussions with officers responsible for 
the processes reviewed.  

8 Acknowledgements 
 

 We would like to express our thanks and appreciation to all those who provided 
support and assistance during the course of the audits in the first six months of 
2013/14. 

 Robert Hutchins 
Head of Audit Partnership 

 

Page 41



 

5
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

 
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 O

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
 e

x
tr

a
c

t 
E

x
e
c

u
ti

v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ri

e
s
 -

 F
ir

s
t 

S
ix

 M
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 

 R
is

k
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
K

e
y

 
L

A
R

R
 

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

s
c
o

re
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

x
 L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d
 =

 T
o

ta
l 
a

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l 
A

N
A

 -
 A

u
d

it
 N

e
e

d
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

ri
s
k
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 C
lie

n
t 

S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

C
lie

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 a

t 
re

q
u

e
s
t 

o
f 

C
lie

n
t 

S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t;

 n
o

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
: 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 

M
a

te
ri
a

l 
S

y
s
te

m
s
 

A
u

d
it
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
O

p
in

io
n
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

C
re

d
it
o

rs
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

F
in

a
l 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 a

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
a

n
d
 a

 h
ig

h
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
a

c
c
u

ra
c
y
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 l
e

a
d

in
g
 t

o
 d

a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
, 

c
o

rr
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

 

W
e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 e

x
is

t 
in

 t
h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
a

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
. 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 r
is

k
s
 h

a
v
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e

e
n

 
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 i
t 
is

 a
c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

d
e
 i
n

 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 a

u
to

m
a
te

 m
a
n

u
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t
h
a

t 
c
o
m

b
in

e
s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
T

re
a

s
u

ry
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 (A
N

A
 

 L
o

w
) 

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

A
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
 t

h
e

 f
is

c
a

l 
c
lim

a
te

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
. 

In
te

re
s
t 

ra
te

s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

a
t 
h

is
to

ri
c
a

lly
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 l
e
n

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 b

a
n

k
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 U
K

, 
is

 d
e

e
m

e
d
 m

o
re

 s
ta

b
le

, 
a

 p
ru

d
e
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 c
o
u

n
te

rp
a
rt

y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 t

a
k
e

n
. 

A
s
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
, 

h
ig

h
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

, 
w

it
h

 
o

n
ly

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

is
s
u

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
. 

  
D

e
b

to
rs

 
 (A

N
A

 
 M

e
d

iu
m

) 

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 D

e
b

to
rs

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 r

o
le

, 
th

e
re

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 o
n

-g
o

in
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

e
b

to
rs

 f
u
n

c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 

is
 w

e
ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 c

e
n

tr
a
lly

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

rs
 a

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

ra
l 
a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
 

T
h
e

 n
e

e
d
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 a

t 
s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
in

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
. 

Page 42



 

6
 

 

B
a

n
k
 

R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

B
a

n
k
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 f
o

r 
T

o
rb

a
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

; 
o

n
ly

 
m

in
o

r 
is

s
u
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n

c
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
re

v
ie

w
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
re

c
e

ip
t 
d

a
te

 f
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 
 R

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 

R
is

k
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
e

g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

u
ti
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 F
IM

S
 S

y
s
 

A
d

m
in

 t
e
a

m
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
v
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e

e
n

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

s
 u

n
a

v
o
id

a
b

le
, 
d

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d
 s

m
a

ll 
s
iz

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

te
a
m

. 

A
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
 w

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
n

k
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 S
IM

S
 t

o
 F

IM
S

 G
L

. 
  

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
L

e
d

g
e

r 
 (A

N
A

 
 M

e
d

iu
m

) 

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

A
 w

e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 M
a

in
 

A
c
c
o

u
n
ti
n

g
 S

y
s
te

m
 e

n
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
b
u

d
g
e

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o
n

a
l 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
. 

 T
h

is
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
a

c
c
u

ra
te

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

th
e

 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s
. 

  

T
h
e

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 p
e

ri
o

d
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

o
f 

v
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 j
o

u
rn

a
ls

 b
y
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. 

B
e

n
e
fi
ts

 
 (A

N
A

 
 M

e
d

iu
m

) 

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

T
h
e

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
is

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 w

e
ll,

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

o
n

ly
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
 o

f 
c
o
n

c
e

rn
 b

e
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

v
e

ry
 o

f 
o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
. 

 W
e
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h
a

t 
m

e
a

s
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 

a
re

a
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
re

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

ra
b

le
 g

o
o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
t 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
. 

P
O

P
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

T
h
e

 o
rd

e
ri
n

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
a

lit
y
 w

it
h

in
 P

O
P

 i
s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

f 
a
n

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 o

rd
e

ri
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

o
b
u

s
t 
a

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
 I
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

 r
e

c
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
 k

e
y
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
a

u
to

m
a
te

d
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
(a

n
d

 r
e

v
e

rs
a

l)
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
d

a
ta

 t
o
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
le

d
g
e

r.
 

W
e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
x
is

t 
in

 t
h
e

 g
o

o
d

s
 r

e
c
e

ip
ti
n

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
a

lit
y
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
s
te

p
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 t
a

k
e
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 m

it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 r
is

k
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 

Page 43



 

7
 

 

A
s
s
e

t 
R

e
g
is

te
r 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

  

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 n

o
n

-c
u

rr
e

n
t 
a

s
s
e

ts
 a

re
 m

a
n
a

g
e
d

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
L

e
d

g
e

r.
  

N
e

w
 a

s
s
e

ts
 a

re
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

A
s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r,

 a
n

d
 e

x
is

te
n

c
e
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

te
d

. 
 R

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

s
 

a
re

 t
im

e
ly

, 
a

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 a

s
s
e

t 
re

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

a
n

d
 a

re
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 T
O

A
D

. 
  

It
 w

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 T

O
A

D
 w

it
h

 
re

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 d

a
ta

 w
a

s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
s
u

e
. 

A
s
s
e

t 
d

is
p

o
s
a
ls

 w
e

re
 f

o
u
n

d
 

to
 b

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
, 

c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

 
p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r.

 
  T

h
e

 A
s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

fu
n
c
ti
o

n
a

lit
y
 i
s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 I
F

R
S

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

 T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 f

u
ll 

o
n

-g
o

in
g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 I
F

R
S

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 a
 p

ro
je

c
t 
to

 r
e
p

la
c
e

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

T
O

A
D

 v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 m

o
d

u
le

. 
  
 

S
o

m
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n

re
s
o

lv
e

d
, 

b
u

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 t

ri
v
ia

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
&

 R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

 (A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

D
ra

ft
  

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

T
h
e

 R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
(R

M
) 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
a

n
g
e

 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 
m

o
n
th

s
. 
 

A
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 i
n
fa

n
c
y
 w

e
 a

re
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
n

 a
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
f 

a
 f
u
lly

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
; 

o
u

r 
o
p

in
io

n
 i
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 

u
p

o
n

 t
h
e

o
re

ti
c
a

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

l 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 o

p
in

io
n

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
ta

tu
s
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

w
o

rk
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n

e
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 a

 f
u

lly
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
m

e
th

o
d
o

lo
g
y
. 

 O
u

r 
in

it
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 m
o
re

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d
 d

y
n

a
m

ic
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 
R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t.
  

 T
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
is

k
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

p
p
e
a

rs
 t

o
 f
o

llo
w

 a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
m

e
th

o
d
o

lo
g
y
, 

b
u

t 
is

s
u
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
id

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
s
, 

a
n
d

 a
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h
o

u
t 
th

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
lin

k
a

g
e

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
is

k
s
, 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 a

n
d

 d
is

a
s
te

r 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
. 

  

Page 44



 

8
 

 

In
c
o
m

e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
h

ir
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 
 

U
K

 P
M

S
 S

y
s
te

m
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
W

e
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 c
lie

n
t 
th

a
t 

th
e

 t
o

o
lk

it
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

te
d
 f

ig
u

re
s
 

w
a

s
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
, 

re
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

m
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
fi
n
d

in
g
s
 o

b
s
o

le
te

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

lie
n
t 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 w

a
y
 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
 

P
a

y
ro

ll 
S

y
s
te

m
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 (A
N

A
 

 C
ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

  

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
o

p
in

io
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
o

n
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n

d
 s

ta
g
e

. 
 

A
 Q

A
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 r

o
le

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 d

a
ta

 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 /

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
tt

e
n

d
e
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 a
n

d
 b

o
a

rd
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
, 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 a

re
a

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

y
s
te

m
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
a

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

s
 

u
lt
im

a
te

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 i
ts

 i
n

te
n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
. 
O

u
r 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
o

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a
u

d
it
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

. 
 T

o
 d

a
te

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 a

s
p
e

c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

ro
je

c
t.

  
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
a

is
e
d

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 P
ro

je
c
t 
T

e
a
m

 a
n
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 
B

o
a

rd
 w

h
e

re
 

a
re

a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 /
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 c
lie

n
t 
h

a
s
 v

a
lu

e
d

 o
u

r 
in

p
u

t 
a
n

d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 e
n

s
u

re
d
 t

h
a

t 
D

A
P

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t.
 

 
T

re
a

s
u

ry
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

- 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 

 (A
N

A
 

 L
o

w
) 

 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 i
t 
is

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 
b

e
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 
 

F
IM

S
 S

y
s
te

m
 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 i
t 
is

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 
b

e
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 
 

Page 45



 

9
 

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

 (A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 i
t 
is

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 
b

e
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 

D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
F

u
n

d
 (

C
ri
s
is

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
) 

 (A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
W

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
4

. 
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 k
e

p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
e

b
t 

T
e
a

m
 

 (A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
W

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
4

. 
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 k
e

p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

IB
S

 O
p

e
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 

 (A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
W

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
4

. 
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 k
e

p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

M
a

in
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

S
y
s
te

m
 -

 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
W

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
4

. 
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 k
e

p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

u
d

it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o
n

d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
1
3

/1
4

: 

 
P

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 O
rd

e
ri
n

g
 P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 (

P
O

P
) 

- 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 M
e
d

iu
m

) 

 
P

a
y
ro

ll 
- 

(A
N

A
 

 C
ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

h
a

n
g
e

 (
D

is
p

o
s
a

l 
o
f 

a
s
s
e

ts
) 

- 
(A

N
A

 
 H

ig
h

) 

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 &

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 (

F
a

ir
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 M
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
) 

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

 
In

c
o
m

e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 -

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 M
e
d

iu
m

) 

 
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 a

n
d
 N

o
n

 D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 R

a
te

s
 -

 (
A

N
A

 
 M

e
d

iu
m

) 

 
C

re
d

it
o

rs
 -

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 -

 (
A

N
A

 
 H

ig
h

) 

Page 46



 

1
0
 

 

 
D

e
b

to
rs

 -
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 M
e
d

iu
m

) 

 
B

a
n

k
 R

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 -
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 
A

s
s
e

t 
R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 
S

e
c
u

re
 D

a
ta

 T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

- 
(C

lie
n

t 
re

q
u

e
s
t)

 
 IT

 A
u

d
it
 

D
a

ta
 S

e
c
u

ri
ty

, 
B

C
P

, 
D

is
a

s
te

r 
R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 

 (A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

 

F
in

a
l 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 (

B
C

P
) 

c
a
n

 o
ft

e
n

 b
e
 s

e
e
n

 a
s
 a

 p
re

d
o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 I

C
T

 
is

s
u

e
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

 s
in

g
le

 e
v
e

n
t 

c
a
n

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 
n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 a

ft
e

r 
e
ff

e
c
ts

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 c
o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

n
o

t 
ju

s
t 
w

it
h

in
 I

C
T

. 
 I

C
T

 C
o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
 f

it
s
 w

it
h

in
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 c

le
a

r 
lin

k
a

g
e

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
. 

 

A
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 u

p
d
a

te
 a

n
d

/o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n
t 

b
o

th
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 P

la
n

s
 (

B
C

P
s
).

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 f

u
n

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

in
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
. 

C
ri
ti
c
a

lly
, 

n
e

it
h

e
r 

IC
T

 B
C

P
s
 n

o
r 

D
is

a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o
v
e

ry
 P

la
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 
a

n
y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 e

it
h
e

r 
a

t 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
o

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
le

v
e

l.
  

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 p
la

n
s
 w

o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

re
s
ili

e
n

c
e

, 
it
 i
s
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

 f
u

lly
 t

e
s
te

d
 p

e
ri
o

d
ic

a
lly

. 

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
D

a
ta

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

, 
R

e
c
o

rd
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
&

 
S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 
 (A

N
A

 
 C

ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

     

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

A
 g

o
o

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
is

 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 a

re
a

s
 w

e
 e

x
a

m
in

e
d

 i
n

 
re

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

d
a
ta

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 f
o
u

n
d

 s
tr

o
n

g
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 o
f 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
d

a
ta

 a
n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 f
o

r 
h

a
n
d

lin
g
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

e
q
u
e

s
ts

. 

W
e
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

d
a

ta
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 d
a

ta
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
. 

W
e
 a

ls
o

 s
u

g
g
e

s
t 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
te

p
s
 

th
a

t 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
s
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

h
a

ri
n
g
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 
o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 E
u

ro
p

e
a
n

 E
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 A

re
a
 (

E
E

A
).

 

 

Page 47



 

1
1
 

 

H
o

s
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 (A
N

A
 

 C
ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

  

D
ra

ft
 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

T
h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
b

ta
in

e
d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

rs
e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
n

fi
rm

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o

r 
a

c
q
u

ir
in

g
 n

e
w

 I
C

T
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 

h
o

s
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

a
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 s
o

u
n
d

 a
n
d

 w
e

ll 
g
o

v
e

rn
e

d
. 

 

 

IT
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

 (A
N

A
 

 C
ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

   

D
ra

ft
 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 e

n
d

 t
o
 e

n
d
 I
T

 a
s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 I
T

, 
H

R
, 

a
n

d
 l
in

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

h
o

 p
la

y
 

a
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
s
ta

rt
e

rs
, 

a
n
d
 I

T
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

re
tr

ie
v
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 o

f 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
. 
 

T
h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 f
o

r 
c
o
n

tr
o

lli
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

tu
rn

 o
f 

IT
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n

t 
is

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
d

ir
e

c
t 

lin
e

 m
a
n

a
g
e

rs
, 

a
n

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
le

te
n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 d

e
p
e

n
d

s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 u

p
o

n
 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
ili

g
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
. 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

d
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

a
v
e

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 b

y
 r

e
in

fo
rc

in
g
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n
d

 t
im

e
ly

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 

ta
s
k
. 

  

In
te

rn
e

t 
&

 E
m

a
il 

S
o
ft

w
a

re
  

 (C
lie

n
t 

re
q

u
e

s
t)

 

O
n

-g
o

in
g
 

a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1

3
/1

4
 s

in
c
e
 p

a
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 I
n

te
rn

e
t 

a
n

d
 

E
m

a
il 

s
o
ft

w
a

re
 o

v
e

r 
to

 I
G

 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 I
C

T
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

a
n

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
rf

c
o
n

tr
o

l 
lic

e
n

c
e

. 
 W

h
e

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
, 

w
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
n

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 r

u
le

 b
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
d
u

c
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 f

o
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 

a
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 /

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 d

e
p

e
n
d

in
g
 o

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
n

e
e

d
. 
 I

n
 s

o
m

e
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 

th
e

s
e
 m

a
y
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
fo

rm
a

l 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

 
S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 P
o

lic
y
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

 (C
lie

n
t 

re
q

u
e

s
t)

 

O
n

-g
o

in
g
 

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 G
ro

u
p

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
, 

a
n
d
 i
n

it
ia

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

n
d
 l
a

u
n
c
h

in
g
 t

h
e

 D
IS

P
 p

o
lic

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 W

o
rk

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 

re
q
u

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

lie
n

t 
in

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

, 
a
n

d
 o

f 
la

te
, 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
x
e

c
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
IC

T
 a

n
d

 I
G

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 l
a

u
n
c
h

 o
f 

a
n

 E
n

d
 U

s
e

r 
C

o
m

p
u
ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
. 

 I
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
lie

n
t.

 
  

Page 48



 

1
2
 

 

P
C

I 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

 (A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

 

O
n

-g
o

in
g
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

 d
e

la
y
 i
n

 
fi
n
a

lis
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
tu

a
l 
d
e

ta
ils

 w
it
h

 C
iv

ic
a

 t
o

 o
u

ts
o

u
rc

e
 c

a
rd

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
, 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 
n

o
n

-c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 P
C

I 
d

a
ta

 
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

, 
a

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 b
e

s
t 

e
n

d
e
a

v
o

u
rs

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 r
e
m

e
d

ia
te

 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

u
d

it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o
n

d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
1
3

/1
4

: 

 
F

ile
 S

to
ra

g
e

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 C
ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

 
M

o
b

ile
 D

e
v
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
(A

N
A

 
 C

ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 W

o
rk

in
g
 -

 (
A

N
A

 
 H

ig
h

) 

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 -

 (
A

N
A

 
 H

ig
h

) 

 
T

h
in

 C
lie

n
t 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 &

 R
o

ll 
o

u
t 

- 
(A

N
A

 
 H

ig
h

) 

 
N

3
 H

e
a

lt
h
 T

ra
n

s
fe

r 
- 

(A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

 
T

e
le

p
h
o

n
y
 &

 V
o

ic
e

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 M
e
d

iu
m

) 

 
W

e
b
s
it
e

 C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
a

n
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

- 
(A

N
A

 
 L

o
w

) 

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
N

e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 &

 M
e

d
ia

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 L
o

w
) 

 
IT

R
A

 (
IT

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t)

 -
 (

A
N

A
 

 C
lie

n
t 
R

e
q

u
e

s
t)

 
 

O
th

e
r 

L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

(L
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 &

 
L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
) 

 (A
N

A
 

 H
ig

h
) 

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 c

le
a

rl
y
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

te
d
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 o

p
e

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 
w

e
re

 f
o

u
n

d
 t
o

 b
e

 g
e

n
e
ra

lly
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
. 

A
 l
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 M

a
n

u
a

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 L
e

x
c
e

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 s
e

e
k
in

g
 L

e
x
c
e

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o
n

 b
u

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

s
 

re
v
ie

w
. 

  

A
 L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 &

 L
it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 w
o

rk
s
 a

re
a

s
 d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
 p

ro
fi
le

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 /

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
, 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 o
c
c
u

rr
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
n

o
w

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 p

a
s
s
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

e
b

t 
T

e
a
m

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
. 

  

Page 49



 

1
3
 

 

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 i
t 
is

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 
is

s
u

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n
 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
. 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
(C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

) 
 (A

N
A

 
 H

ig
h

) 

N
o

t 
y
e

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d
 

 
 

T
C

T
 N

e
w

 S
C

C
R

 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 
(A

N
A

 
 C

ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

 D
e
fe

rr
e

d
  

N
o

t 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
It

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 

a
u

d
it
 i
n

p
u

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
to

 t
h

is
 a

re
a
..

 

E
le

c
ti
o

n
s
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 

D
e

fe
rr

e
d
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
D

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 2
0

1
4
/1

5
 a

t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
e

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
lie

n
t.

 

  
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

: 
P

la
c
e
 

it
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

  
O

p
in

io
n
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

T
O

R
2

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

 (A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

F
in

a
l 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

 a
s
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r,

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 

th
e

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 o

n
e
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ts
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

r-
ri
d

in
g
 a

u
d

it
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
. 
 A

 f
e

w
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

re
g
a

rd
in

g
 I

T
 i
n

te
rf

a
c
in

g
 a

ls
o

 a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
, 

b
u

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
c
a

n
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 h

o
p

e
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

a
u

d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

 n
o

tw
it
h

s
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

n
y
 n

e
w

 /
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 r

is
k
s
 c

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 l
ig

h
t.

 

Page 50



 

1
4
 

 

G
o

in
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 T

O
R

2
 a

n
d
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
s
 e

v
o

lv
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 A

u
d

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 i
n

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t

o
 c

lie
n

t 
/ 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

n
e

e
d

s
, 
a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 a
c
q
u

is
it
io

n
 o

f 
M

a
y
 G

u
rn

e
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 K
ie

r 
G

ro
u
p

 a
d

d
s
 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
u

n
c
e

rt
a

in
ty

. 
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 R

iv
ie

ra
 

T
o
u

ri
s
m

 C
o
m

p
a

n
y
 

 (A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

    

F
in

a
l 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

o
f 

a
 h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

, 
w

it
h

 b
u
d

g
e

ta
ry

 v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

, 
a
n

d
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 S
u
b

-C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a

rd
. 

 

T
h
e

 m
a

in
 B

o
a

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

p
a

n
y
 a

ls
o

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 w

e
ll 

c
o

n
s
ti
tu

te
d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
e

n
io

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
m

a
d

e
 a

n
y
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 o
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
. 

G
ra

n
t 

1
 -

 B
u

s
 

O
p

e
ra

to
rs

 G
ra

n
t 

 (C
lie

n
t 

re
q
u

e
s
t)

 
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
R

e
c
o

rd
s
 w

e
re

 f
o

u
n

d
 t
o
 b

e
 o

f 
a
 g

o
o

d
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
la

im
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
a

m
e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 d
e

a
d

lin
e

. 
 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a

n
g
e

 
(C

R
C

 S
c
h

e
m

e
) 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 
M

e
d

iu
m

) 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
R

e
c
o

rd
s
 w

e
re

 f
o

u
n

d
 t
o
 b

e
 o

f 
a
 g

o
o

d
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
a

rb
o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
(C

R
C

) 
E

n
e

rg
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 w
a

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
d

e
a
d

lin
e

 o
f 

3
1

s
t  J

u
ly

. 
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

 (A
N

A
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

D
ra

ft
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

T
h
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 (

E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 2

0
0
4

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e
a

c
h

 B
ID

 a
re

a
. 

 T
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 

h
a

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 
p

a
rt

ie
s
 (

i.
e

. 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 T
o

rb
a

y
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
o
m

p
a

n
y
).

  
T

h
e

 l
e

v
y
 i
s
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
a

n
d

 f
u

lly
 p

a
id

 o
v
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 C

o
m

p
a
n

y
. 

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a
d

e
 t
o

 e
n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h
e

 m
a

in
ly

 r
e

lia
b

le
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
e
v
y
. 

T
h
e

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e

 l
a

te
r 

s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
d

e
b
t 

re
c
o

v
e

ry
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
. 

 

Page 51



 

1
5
 

 

T
O

R
2

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

 
F

o
llo

w
 U

p
 &

 
F

u
tu

re
 S

ta
te

 
M

a
p

p
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
W

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
4

. 
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 k
e

p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
.  

P
a

rk
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
h

ir
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 
 

T
o

rb
a

y
 H

a
rb

o
u

r 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
(A

N
A

 r
is

k
 

 
M

e
d

iu
m

) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
. 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 -
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d

 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
. 

E
n

g
lis

h
 R

iv
ie

ra
 

T
o
u

ri
s
m

 C
o
m

p
a

n
y
 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 
M

e
d

iu
m

) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

n
n

o
u
n

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

B
u
d

g
e

t 
C

u
ts

 

S
o

u
th

 D
e

v
o

n
 L

in
k
 

R
o

a
d
 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 
C

ri
ti
c
a

l)
  

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
W

a
tc

h
in

g
 b

ri
e
f 

b
e

in
g
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 i
ts

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 
p

h
a

s
e

. 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

u
d

it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o
n

d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
1
3

/1
4

: 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

0
6

 -
 (

A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 M
e

d
iu

m
) 

 
E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
a
n

y
 -

 (
A

N
A

 r
is

k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

 
 

 
 

Page 52



 

1
6
 

 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
: 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h
 

A
u

d
it
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
O

p
in

io
n
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

(i
n

c
l.
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 
g
ra

n
ts

) 
 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

D
ra

ft
 

G
o

o
d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

T
h
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
lic

e
n

s
e

d
 H

o
u

s
e

s
 i
n

 M
u

lt
ip

le
 O

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
M

O
) 

w
a

s
 

fo
u

n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 o
f 

a
 g

o
o
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
. 
T

h
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 w

e
re

 
u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t.
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 g
o

o
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e

 F
ir
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

is
 e

n
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
 

T
o

rb
a

y
 c

a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
y
 p

u
b

lis
h

in
g
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
in

g
 a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 
m

e
th

o
d

 t
o

 c
a

p
tu

re
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
. 
Is

s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ri
s
e

n
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
(P

I)
 f

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
 f
o

r 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
 S

in
c
e
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

 a
ll 

c
a

lls
 a

re
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 C

a
ll 

C
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
im

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
. 

 

G
e

n
e

ra
lly

 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 g

o
o

d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e
ta

ils
 f

o
u

n
d
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 c
a

s
e
 t

e
s
te

d
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 i
n

 e
n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
 

a
re

 s
c
a

n
n

e
d

 i
n

to
 C

o
m

in
o

. 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ta

l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 s
in

c
e

 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h
a

t 
a

ll 
c
a

s
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 4

 m
o
n

th
s
 a

n
d

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

a
c
ti
o

n
 t
a

k
e
n

 o
n

 c
lo

s
u

re
. 

 

A
 m

e
th

o
d

 o
f 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 c

a
s
e

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 s
in

c
e

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

2
. 
 T

h
e

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
 c

le
a

r 
d

is
ti
n

c
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 h

ig
h

 a
n

d
 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

. 
S

in
c
e

 J
u

ly
 

2
0

1
3

 t
h
e

s
e

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a
n

d
a
to

ry
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
a

ll 
C

e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 a
s
k
 a

n
d
 a

 

ri
s
k
 a

s
 w

e
lls

 a
s
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
. 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
w

o
rk

lo
a

d
s
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 
T

h
is

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
t 
d

a
te

 o
f 

a
u

d
it
 1

7
0

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 d

is
re

p
a

ir
 a

n
d

 H
M

O
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 t
o

 2
0

1
1
/1

2
. 
S

te
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 t

a
k
e

n
 s

in
c
e

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 t
o

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

b
a

c
k
lo

g
s
 a

re
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 p
ro

m
p

tl
y
. 

T
h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 w

e
b

 p
a

g
e

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 a

llo
w

in
g
 o

n
lin

e
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
fo

rm
s
 t
o

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
s
ti
g
a

te
d

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1
3

. 

h
a

v
in

g
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
. 

Page 53



 

1
7
 

 

F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
, 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 W

e
lf
a

re
, 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
, 

&
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

 (A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 
M

e
d

iu
m

) 
 

D
ra

ft
 

F
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
l 

W
e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 

T
h
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
is

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 F

S
A

 c
o

d
e
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
ta

ils
 

th
e

 n
a

tu
re

 a
n

d
 f

re
q
u
e

n
c
y
 o

f 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 v

is
it
s
 i
.e

. 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
fu

ll 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
; 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 e

tc
. 

(C
a

te
g
o

ry
 A

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 6

 m
o

n
th

s
; 

c
a

te
g
o

ry
 B

 
re

q
u

ir
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
v
is

it
s
; 

a
n

d
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 C

, 
re

q
u

ir
e

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 1

8
 m

o
n

th
s
).

  
B

a
s
e

d
 

u
p

o
n

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 r
e

a
lis

ti
c
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
w

h
ils

t 
a

tt
e
m

p
ti
n

g
 t

o
 

m
in

im
is

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 r
is

k
, 

in
te

rn
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 s

e
t 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 s

e
t 

a
t 

1
0

0
%

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
ri
s
k
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 A

 a
n
d

 B
, 
a

n
d
 5

0
%

 f
o

r 
ri
s
k
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 C

. 
 F

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 I

A
 h

a
s
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

s
e

 c
a

te
g
o

ri
e

s
 a

s
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 t

h
e

 
h

ig
h

e
s
t 

ri
s
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
. 

  
 W

e
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 F

S
A

 c
o

d
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

p
p

lie
d

 d
if
fe

re
n
tl
y
 i
n

 t
h

a
t 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 

c
a

n
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 r
a

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 f
u

ll 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 C

a
te

g
o

ry
 C

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

s
 t
h

e
 

le
v
e

ls
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b
e

e
n

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
, 

th
e

y
 a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t
o

 a
p
p

ly
 t

h
e

 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

p
ti
o
n

, 
a

n
d

 f
u

ll 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

  
 It

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 t
h

a
t 

c
a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

ro
p

p
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
a

ti
n
g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
; 

 
in

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 r
e

v
is

io
n

 a
s
 o

f 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4
 

 t
h

is
 

is
 u

n
d
e

rs
to

o
d

 t
o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 a

id
 t

h
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 d

ro
p

p
in

g
 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 l
o

w
e

r 
ri
s
k
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
fr

e
q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
 A

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
F

u
ll 

T
im

e
 E

H
O

 p
e

rm
a
n

e
n
t 

p
o

s
t 
h

a
s
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 f

ill
e

d
. 
 A

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 M

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e

a
v
e

 a
n
d

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
v
e

re
d
 b

y
 a

n
 E

H
O

 
in

te
rn

a
lly

. 
 In

 c
o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
, 
d

e
s
p

it
e

 s
o

m
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 s
h
o

rt
ly

, 
th

e
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
is

 u
n
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 F
S

A
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 f

re
q
u
e

n
c
ie

s
 f
o

r 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 o

f 
c
a

te
g
o

ry
 C

 a
n

d
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
u

s
 s

ti
ll 

p
o

s
in

g
 a

 r
is

k
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

. 
  

 
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t
o

 b
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 a
re

 i
n

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

is
. 

It
 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 o
p

in
io

n
 w

ill
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
ti
l 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
4

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
o

s
t 

is
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 f
ill

e
d

. 
 

Page 54



 

1
8
 

 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 
C

ri
ti
c
a

l)
 

D
ra

ft
  

G
o

o
d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

O
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 w

e
ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 m

ile
s
to

n
e

s
. 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
e

ir
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
it
h

 n
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
a
b

le
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
n

 t
h
e

 d
a

y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
r 

to
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il.

  

 R
o

b
u

s
t 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 

p
la

n
 a

n
d

 
ri
s
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

th
a

t 
w

a
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 p
u
b

lic
 w

e
re

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

 G
o

o
d
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 D

e
v
o

n
, 
T

o
rb

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
ly

m
o

u
th

 w
a

s
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 I
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 I
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a

m
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 p
o

s
t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r.
 C

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
w

e
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 s

ta
g
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 r

is
k
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 p

o
s
t 

tr
a
n

s
fe

r 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
id

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
, 
ta

k
in

g
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o
u
n

t 
a
n

y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 f

ro
m

 D
e

v
o

n
 A

u
d

it
 

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

. 
 

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 

(i
n

te
rn

a
l)
 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 L
o
w

) 

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

H
&

S
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

e
re

 
fo

u
n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

ly
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 M

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 t

o
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 H
&

S
 r

is
k
s
. 

 
G

re
a

te
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

n
d

 

k
 o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 H

&
S

 p
o

lic
y
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
. 

 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

 (A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
. 
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 a

t 
 

Page 55



 

1
9
 

 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 W

e
ll 

B
e

in
g
 B

o
a

rd
 

(A
N

A
 r

is
k
 

 H
ig

h
) 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
. 

 
T

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

u
d

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 h
a

lf
 o

f 
1

3
/1

4
: 

 
B

e
re

a
v
e

m
e

n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 (
A

N
A

 r
is

k
 

 L
o
w

) 
   

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

 A
u

d
it

 A
re

a
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 

O
p

in
io

n
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

P
a

rk
fi
e

ld
 

(M
y
 P

la
c
e

) 
 (A

N
A

 -
 H

ig
h

 R
is

k
) 

F
in

a
l 

F
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
l 

W
e
a
k
n

e
s
s
 

P
a

rk
fi
e

ld
 h

a
s
 s

e
e

n
 a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 s

in
c
e

 i
t 

o
p

e
n
e

d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

 w
it
h

 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 
re

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 l
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
n

d
a
n

c
ie

s
. 
S

ta
ff

in
g
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 l
e

d
 t
o

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
re

a
s
, 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 

o
f 

fi
n
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
o
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
r.

 

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 o

v
e

r 
in

c
o

m
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
:-

 

£
1

,0
0

0
;  

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t;
 

 P
a

rk
fi
e

ld
 h

a
s
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

p
o

rt
a
b

le
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t.
 A

n
 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 

v
e

ry
 p

o
o

r 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 i
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 T
o

rb
a

y
's

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

n
to

ri
e

s
. 

 P
a

rk
fi
e

ld
 u

s
e

 a
 C

h
ip

 &
 P

IN
 m

a
c
h

in
e
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 c

a
rd

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
; 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
n

o
 P

C
I 

D
S

S
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 C
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 i
s
 h

e
ld

 f
o

r 
th

is
 m

a
c
h

in
e
. 
T

h
e
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
u

c
h

 a
 

c
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 i
s
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
ld

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 
p

e
n
a

lt
ie

s
 o

r 
th

e
 c

a
rd

 m
a

c
h

in
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 b

e
in

g
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
n

.  

Page 56



 

2
0
 

 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 

F
in

a
l 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

d
  

T
h
e

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 F

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 f
o

r 
2
0

1
2

/1
3

 w
e

re
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

 t
o

 b
e

 £
4

.4
8

m
 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
n

 a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o

s
ts

 o
u

tt
u

rn
e

d
 a

t 
£

6
.0

1
0
m

; 
a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
n
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
o
f 

£
1

.5
2

7
m

. 
 T

h
is

 w
a

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b
e

rs
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 I
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
IS

P
) 

c
o

s
ts

.  
T

o
rb

a
y
 h

a
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 s

te
p
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 m
o

re
 i
n
 h

o
u

s
e

 f
o

s
te

r 
c
a

re
rs

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lu

m
p
 s

u
m

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 g
iv

e
 s

o
m

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 a

 P
e

rm
a

n
e
n

c
y
 P

a
n

e
l 
h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 s
e
t 

u
p

 t
o

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 F

o
s
te

r 
C

a
re

 
P

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n

 1
6

 w
e

e
k
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 
fo

s
te

ri
n

g
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 b
a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

t 
th

e
 p

re
s
e

n
t.
 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

u
d

it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o
n

d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
1
3

/1
4

: 

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 &

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 -

 (
A

N
A

 
 H

ig
h

 R
is

k
) 

 
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 -
 (

A
N

A
 -

 M
e

d
iu

m
 R

is
k
) 

 
D

e
le

g
a

te
d

 P
o

w
e

rs
 &

 R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 -

 (
A

N
A

 -
 L

o
w

 R
is

k
) 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

7
 P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 -

 (
A

N
A

 -
 M

e
d

iu
m

 R
is

k
) 

 
3

 -
 5

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 -

 (
A

N
A

 -
 H

ig
h

 R
is

k
) 

 
M

a
rk

e
ts

 -
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
&

 E
x
te

rn
a

l 
- 

(A
N

A
 -

 H
ig

h
 R

is
k
) 

 
L

o
c
a

l 
In

te
g
ra

te
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 T

ru
s
t 

(L
IS

T
) 

- 
(A

N
A

 
 H

ig
h

 R
is

k
) 

             

Page 57



T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
- 

S
c

h
o

o
ls

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
V

a
lu

e
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 P

o
s

it
io

n
 a

t 
:

J
u

l-
2

0
1

3

DfE No

S
c

h
o

o
l 
N

a
m

e
S

F
V

S
 

E
x

p
e
ct

a
ti

o
n
s 

M
e
t

L
L

C
O

ve
ra

ll
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 "

n
" 

a
re

 u
n
d

e
r 

8
5

%
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

O
ve

ra
ll

o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 "

n
" 

a
re

 u
n
d

e
r 

6
5

%
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

3
6
1
5

A
ll 

S
a
in

ts
, 

B
a
b
b
a
c
o
m

b
e
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

In
 P

a
rt

T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

3
1
0
3

B
ri
x
h
a
m

 C
h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 N

u
rs

e
ry

Y
e

s
B

ri
x
h
a
m

Y

3
6
1
9

C
o
lla

to
n
 S

t 
M

a
ry

 C
h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 (

A
id

e
d
) 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

In
 P

a
rt

P
a
ig

n
to

n
Y

2
4
0
7

F
u
rz

e
h
a
m

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
B

ri
x
h
a
m

Y

3
6
0
0

G
a
lm

p
to

n
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

In
 P

a
rt

B
ri
x
h
a
m

Y

2
4
5
5

H
o
m

e
la

n
d
s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

2
4
3
8

O
ld

w
a
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

In
 P

a
rt

P
a
ig

n
to

n
Y

2
4
6
4

P
re

s
to

n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
P

a
ig

n
to

n
Y

3
6
1
7

P
ri
o
ry

 R
o
m

a
n
 C

a
th

o
lic

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

3
6
1
4

Q
u
e
e
n
s
w

a
y
 C

a
th

o
lic

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

In
 P

a
rt

T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

2
4
7
3

R
o
s
e
la

n
d
s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
P

a
ig

n
to

n
Y

3
6
1
3

S
a
c
re

d
 H

e
a
rt

 C
a
th

o
lic

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

In
 P

a
rt

P
a
ig

n
to

n
Y

2
4
6
9

S
h
e
rw

e
ll 

V
a
lle

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

3
6
0
1

S
t 

M
a
rg

a
re

t 
C

lit
h
e
ro

w
 C

a
th

o
lic

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

In
 P

a
rt

B
ri
x
h
a
m

Y

3
6
1
6

S
t 

M
a
ry

c
h
u
rc

h
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

id
e
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 &
 N

u
r

In
 P

a
rt

T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

3
1
2
0

U
p
to

n
 S

t 
Ja

m
e
s
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

3
1
2
1

W
a
rb

e
rr

y
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

2
4
6
0

W
a
tc

o
m

b
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

2
4
3
9

W
h
it
e
 R

o
c
k
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

In
 P

a
rt

P
a
ig

n
to

n
Y

P
ri

m
a

ry
1
0

0
9

0
0

0
0

1
9

5
3
%

0
%

4
7
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

4
6
0
1

S
t 

C
u
th

b
e
rt

 M
a
y
n
e
 J

o
in

t 
C

a
th

o
lic

 a
n
d
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l

Y
e

s
T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

W
e
s
tl
a
n
d
s

Y

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

1
0

1
0

0
0

0

2
5
0
%

0
%

5
0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

7
0
4
2

Y
e

s
T
o
rq

u
a
y

Y

7
0
4
6

M
a
y
fie

ld
 S

c
h
o
o
l

In
 P

a
rt

P
a
ig

n
to

n
Y

T
o
rb

a
y
 S

c
h
o
o
l

1
0

1
0

0
0

0

S
p

e
c

ia
l

5
0
%

0
%

5
0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

2 G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 
A

ll
 S

c
h

o
o

ls

1
1

0

1
0

9
0

C
o
n
fir

m
e
d
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

E
xp

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 n

o
t 
M

e
t 

(f
ro

m
 S

e
lf
-A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
&

 o
r 

A
u
d
it)

U
n
c
o
n
fir

m
e
d
 

S
e
lf-

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

M
e

t
In

 P
a

rt
N

o
t 

M
e

t

N
o

 S
F

V
S

 

R
e

tu
rn

 

re
c

e
iv

e
d

E
xp

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 m

e
t 

- 
In

 P
a

rt

1
2

1
1

0

1
0

1

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
1

    
     

                          

Page 58



 

2
2
 

 

T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 -

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 a
n

d
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 d

a
te

 a
s

 a
t 

3
0

th
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3

  
 S

ta
tu

s

A
re

a

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
A

u
d

it
 

E
n

ti
ti
e

s

P
la

n
n

e
d

 

d
a

ys

A
c
tu

a
l 

d
a

ys
A

u
d

it
 s

ta
rt

e
d

A
u

d
it
 

fi
e

ld
w

o
rk

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d

D
ra

ft
 

re
p

o
rt

 

is
s

u
e

d

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 

R
e

c
'd

F
in

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

is
s

u
e

d

D
ra

ft
 

re
p

o
rt

 

is
s

u
e

d
 i
n

 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

ys

F
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 

is
s

u
e

d
 i
n

 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

ys

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L
IC

 H
E

A
2
6

1
7
5

9
7
.6

6
1
7

1
4

1
0

3
3

1
0

3

A
D

U
L
T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

2
5

1
2
0

5
0
.2

6
1
3

1
0

9
5

5
9

5

P
L
A

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

5
0

5
0
8

2
1
0
.7

1
3
7

2
5

1
9

1
2

1
1

1
9

1
1

S
C

H
O

O
L
S

1
7

4
9

1
2
.5

9
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

A
N

T
I-
F

R
A

U
D

 A
N

D
 I
R

R
E

G
U

L
A

R
IT

IE
S

1
5

1
2
5

5
3
.4

4
1
5

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

P
R

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 /

 C
O

N
T
R

A
C

T
 A

U
D

IT
0

2
0

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T
E

 I
N

IT
IA

T
IV

E
S

1
2
0

2
.8

3
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

G
R

A
N

T
 C

L
A

IM
S

1
1
0

1
.3

9
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

O
T
H

E
R

 C
H

A
R

G
E

A
B

L
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
0

1
4
5

4
7
.8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

A
D

V
IC

E
 /

 C
O

N
S

U
L
T
A

N
C

Y
7

5
5

1
6
.1

9
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

F
o
ll
o
w

 u
p
 f
o
r 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

0
2
5

1
3
.2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

0
5
0

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
1
4
2

1
3
0
2

5
0
6
.0

7
9
1

6
4

5
3

3
5

3
4

5
3

3
4

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

6
8

C
a
n
c
e
ll
e
d
 A

u
d
it
s

0

T
o
ta

l 
R

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
1
3
7
0

A
n
n
u
a
l

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

ts
 f

o
r 

T
o

rb
a

y
 (

e
x

c
. 

S
c
h

o
T
a
rg

e
t

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 p

la
n
 s

ta
rt

e
d

1
0
0

2
5
%

5
6
.7

8
%

5
0

7
0
.4

0
%

7
5

1
0
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 p

la
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 (

fi
e
ld

 w
o

9
3

1
8
%

3
8
.9

8
%

4
5

4
8
.8

0
%

7
1

9
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 d

a
y
s
 d

e
li
ve

re
d

9
5

2
4
%

1
8
.8

5
%

4
8

3
7
.3

6
%

7
2

9
5

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
y
s

9
0

9
0
%

9
0
.9

1
%

9
0

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

9
0

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 d
a
y
s

9
0

9
0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

9
0

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
.

9
0

9
0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

9
0

A
n
n
u
a
l

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

ts
 f

o
r 

T
o

rb
a

y
 (

In
c
 S

c
h

o
o

lT
a
rg

e
t

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 p

la
n
 s

ta
rt

e
d

1
0
0

2
5
%

5
0
.7

5
%

5
0

6
4
.0

8
%

7
5

1
0
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 p

la
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 (

fi
e
ld

 w
o

9
3

1
8
%

3
5
.0

7
%

4
5

4
5
.0

7
%

7
1

9
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 d

a
y
s
 d

e
li
ve

re
d

9
5

2
4
%

1
8
.4

9
%

4
8

3
6
.9

4
%

7
2

9
5

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
y
s

9
0

9
0
%

9
1
.1

8
%

9
0

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

9
0

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 d
a
y
s

9
0

9
0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

9
0

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
.

9
0

9
0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
0

9
0

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
                                 

 

Page 59



���������	

���������	�
���
�	��
���	����������� �� ��	���	�	����������

��	���������������	���	������������ ����������

���

���

��
��

��	�
��

��������
��
���
�������


�
���
��
�
������
������

���

���

��
��

���
���
�����
��
���
�
���


���	��	������
����	
��
	
������
�


	����
�

� �

���

!� ��

��	�
��

����
����
��
�	���
��


����	���
�
�����	�
�

�"�

�#�

�� ��

$�%

���
�
%�	�
���
�������&


����
������
�

�"�

���

��
��

���
���
�
���
����
�����
��
���


�&	���
����
�

���

���

�� ��

���
���
����
�����
��
����
��
��
	


��������
	���������
�

 ��

���
!� ��

��	�
��

����
�
����������

�
��


����
��
�
���
����	�������
���


���������
	��������������
�
	��&


���
�
���
�	�����
�

�!�

��
�� ��

���
���
�
����	�
����
��


����������
��
�
�	����������'


��
	���
�
(
�����
�
�����	
�

� �

���

!� ��

���
���	
�����
��
��
	
�
������


����
��
�
�����
�
�

���

���

��
!�

���
���
�	���
	���	�
���
��
��
�


������
�����
�

# �

���

!� ��

���
���
	���	�
&���
���	��	����


%��&��
(
����
��
���
������&�
�

���

�#�

!� ��

$�%

���
�
%�	�
���


	��������������
�

 ��

���
��

��

���
���
	���	�
������

���	�����
�

�#�

���

�� ��

���������	
��
����	���������
�����������

)�	�
*��������

*��������

+��,
���

-��	

Page 60



�

�

�

���������	

	�
�������
��
��������

��������������������
��
�

�

������� 	�
��������

��������	
��
�� 
�����������	
���	�������	��������
����������������������������������������
�
�	�����
��
����������������	���
����
�����	
�������	����������	�����	����
�����
����	����������
������	������������������
���	�����	���
�������	
����	������
�������������	��	��	�������
�����	
������
�������

� �
���
����	
��
�� 
������������	
���	��������	��������������������������
�	�����
�����������

����	��������������	��
�	�����
��	
� ������������	����	����������	������������
������
��
���������	�����	�����	���������������	�������������
����	
�����
�������	
����	����
���������������	����	�������������	������������
�����
�������

� �
!��������	���
�������
��

!	��������	��	�������������	����������	���	������������	�������	
������
�����

��	����
�����������������������������
�	�����
��"�����	�������
�����	��
�������
�������
��	���
�������	�����������������������������������#������	
����	��
��������	���
������	��������������	������	�����$������������	����������������

� �
%�	
���	����
����	������
!
�	�����
��


����������
�	�����
�����	������	����	������
��	
�����������	��	������
�
���������
����������������
��������
����������������	�������������
�������
��������	�������	�����	�����������
������	�����������������������������
�����
�������
&�����	�����	�������������$���������	
� ���������������������'��	����
��������������&��	
����������������
���������������������������
��������
�������
��!������	�����	���������������	
����	����
�����������������

Page 61



	�
���������
�������������������������
�

��������� 	�
�������
�

����� (����	�����	����	
�	���(�������	������������	�����������	������������
)����	���
����
����	����������
���������	������������������������%�����������

���������
�
��������	��	���	�����������	��������	������������	
����������	��	������	�������

*�
���� '�	���������	����	���	����������	������������
��������	���	�����
������
������������������
��������
���������	���	���
��������	�����������&��	
������
�
�����������	�������	������	�����������������	��!������	���������	
����	����
��
������������	���	�����	���������	����	����	
���	�����
�	�����
��������

+��� +��������������&���	�����������������	�����	���	��������������	�������	�����
��������	���������
�������	�
�������������	������	����	����*�	�����	��
�����
�������&���������	���������	��
���
�	������������������������������
�������������������
�������������������
���������������
�����������������������

���	����������������������
����

���
�������������������������������������������������� ������
�

�������� 	�
�������
�

,���-������������
*����
��
����
.	���������
�

/�����	��&��	��������	&�
������������������������������	��������
���������
��	�������������������������������������������������	��������	�����	���������
�����������������������	����������	�������������	�������������������	�&������
�����������������	�,0
�-#0
"'
!1"+2�*(#3"/�����������	������	�������
����������������
�.,'+(��!%!"/�������������������������	��������	��

-������� (	��������������������������
������������	
���
����&���������������
�	
������	���������	���	�������	��
�	�������	��������	������
�
��������
�
�������&����������������������������	���	�����
��������������	��������	&�������
��	�	������������������������	�	������	����&������������������������������	&������
�	������
��	����������	
���
�������������	���&����$�
���������	����������	����
������������������������	���������&�
���
��	����������	��	���	���������������
�������	���������	�������������������
���������
�-#0
"'
���

#��������
� !	��������	����
�������
�����	�������������
��	�����������
�������	���
�����������������������������������������
���	���������	��
�����	��&�
�����������������	���������	��	�&����	�����
�����	���������������
�
#"�
#!'
"/���

'�	��
�	����� *���������������������	�������������	������������	���
������������
������
������������������	
��	���������������	
����'0,%!/",
!(+�������	������
������
�������������	�������
�������

��������	
�
���
�������

!	��������	�������������	�������������	������������������������������-���	�������
�	
�����'�����"����������������������	������	������	���������������
������	�
�����������������������������������������	����
����������	��������	���������
���
�������	��������	��������	��	�����������
��	����������������	��������&�
��������������������	�����	�
��������������	��
�	���������������	���

�
�

�

� Page 62



 

Meeting:  Audit Committee Date:  22nd January 2014 

                 Council  6th February 2014   

Wards Affected:  All Wards in Torbay 

Report Title:  Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 (incorporating the Annual 

Investment Strategy 2014/15 and the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 

2014/15) 

Executive Lead Contact Details:  Mayor, 01803 207001, mayor@torbay.gov.uk 

Supporting Officer Contact Details:  Pete Truman, Principal Accountant, 01803 207302, 

pete.truman@torbay.gov.uk 

1. Purpose and Introduction 

 

1.1 The Strategy outlined in this report aims to support the provision of all Council 
services by the management of the Council’s cash flow, debt and investment 
operations in 2014/15 and effectively control the associated risks and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks. 

 
1.2 The overall objectives of the Treasury Management Strategy are: 

• To ensure sufficient funding is available for day-to-day activities and capital 
projects through effective cash flow management 

• To seek to reduce the impact on the revenue account of net interest costs through 
optimal levels of borrowing and investment  

• To prioritise control of risks in investing cash and to then achieve maximum 
returns from those investments commensurate with proper levels of security and 
liquidity. 

 

2. Proposed Decisions 

 

 Audit Committee 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee endorse the Treasury Management 

Strategy for 2014/15. 

  

Council 

2.2 The Council is recommended to approve the Treasury Management Strategy for 

2014/15 (incorporating the Annual Investment Strategy 2014/15) set out at 

Appendix 1 to this Report; 

 

2.3 The Council is recommended to approve the Prudential and Treasury Indicators 

2014/15 laid out in Annex 1 of this report; 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 63



2.4 The Council is recommended in line with the Council’s Constitution and 

Financial Regulations to approve: 

 

(i) that the Chief Finance Officer be authorised to take any decisions on 

borrowing and investments. (Delegations to the Section 151 Officer, 

paragraph 3.1(a)); and 

(ii) that the Chief Finance Officer be authorised to invest temporarily or 

utilise surplus monies of the Council; (Financial Regulations, paragraph 

14.5); 

 

2.5 The Council is recommended to approve the Annual Minimum Revenue 

Provision Policy Statement for 2014/15 as shown in Annex 2 to this report. 

 

 

3. Reason for Decisions 

 

3.1 The Treasury Management Strategy is considered under a requirement of the CIPFA 

Code of Practice on Treasury Management which was adopted by the Council on 25th 

March 2010.  

3.2  The approval of an Annual Investment Strategy by Council is a requirement of the 

Guidance on Local Government Investments issued by the Secretary of State under 

section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 2003. This sets out the Council’s 

policies for managing its investments under the priorities of security first, liquidity 

second and then returns. 

3.3 In addition, the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to ‘have regard to‘ 

the Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to ensure 

that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.   

3.4 Under CLG regulations the Council is required to approve a Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP) Statement in advance of each year.  

 

Supporting Information 

4. Position 

 

4.1 The Council defines its treasury management activities as: 

“The management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, it’s banking, 

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 

associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 

consistent with those risks”. 

 4.2 It is a statutory requirement under Section 33 of the Local Government Finance Act 

1992, for the Council to produce a balanced budget.  In particular, Section 32 requires 

a local authority to calculate its budget requirement for each financial year to include 

the revenue costs that flow from capital financing decisions.  This report, together with 

Page 64



the rolling Capital Investment Plan, forms an integrated strategy to ensure the 

affordability of capital projects. 

4.3 The provisional 2014/15 budget for interest payments has therefore been set at a level 

which will cover the Council’s borrowing requirements in the Capital Investment Plan 

together with cash flow costs arising from capital projects. 

 

4.4 The interest receipts budget for 2014/15, which is directly linked to the Council’s 

borrowing position, is based on an average investment balance of £67 million and an 

average investment rate of 0.84% (the estimate for 2013/14 was 1.45%). This 

includes monies held by the Council’s external Fund Manager and exceeds the 

benchmark rate forecast to remain at around 0.50% 

4.5 The budget for payment of interest on debt for 2014/15 is based on an overall 

borrowing rate of 4.39% which (the estimate for 2013/14 was 4.31%). 

4.6 The core balances for which cash backing is required reflects the level of Council 

reserves, provisions, unapplied grants and contributions and working capital. This 

links to the Capital Investment Plan and Medium Term Resource Plan which form the 

basis of the Council’s longer term strategic cash flow forecasts. 

4.7 The proposed strategy for 2014/15 is set out in full at Appendix A to this report and 
covers the following: 

• Prudential and Treasury Indicators; 

• Capital expenditure and the Capital Financing Requirement 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy  

• prospects for interest rates; 

• economic conditions and scenario planning; 

• the borrowing strategy; 

• the Annual Investment Strategy; 

• policy on use of external service providers; 

• reporting arrangements and management evaluation; 

• other matters 

 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 

CIPFA Prudential Code, CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 

Code and CLG Investment Guidance. 

 

4.8 The key points of the proposed strategy are: 

 

* Little or no increase in interest rates forecasts in 2014/15 but contingency 
plans to act if rates do move; 

* A steady but slow increase in the level of the Capital Financing Requirement 
primarily linked to the South Devon Link Road 

* MRP generates £4.5million per year for repayment of borrowing 

* The Council will seek to early repay up to £10million of borrowing over the 
next four years on sufficiently favourable movement in rates 

Page 65



* Opportunity to repay will not be assumed within the budget and investment 
strategy will be based on current projected cash levels; 

* The number of suitable investment counterparties is very limited 

* Enhanced Investment rates available to local authorities are falling as a result 
of the Government’s Funding for Lending scheme.  

* An element of core cash levels will, where possible, be exposed to deposits 
of around one year duration predominantly in the UK part-nationalised Banks. 

* The possibility of a rise in investment rates will be mitigated by use of short-
term variable rate instruments. 

 

 

5. Possibilities and Options 

 

5.1 Not applicable. 

 

6. Fair Decision Making 

 

6.1 Not applicable 

 

7. Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

 

7.1 Not applicable 

 

8. Consultation 

 

8.1 Not applicable 

 

9. Risks 

 

9.1 The main risks to Treasury Management activities will arise from interest rate levels 

and volatility, liquidity and cash flow requirements and creditworthiness of investment 

counterparties. 

9.2 The management of specific risks is outlined in the Treasury Management Practices 

as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice approved by Council on 25th March 2010. 

Detailed controls are set by the Chief Financial Officer within the Schedules to the 

Treasury Management Practices and these are reviewed annually. 

9.3 Other sections of this report below deal further with risk management and mitigation of 

particular elements of the 2014/15 Strategy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



Appendices 

 

Appendix A  Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 

Annex 1 Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators  
Annex 2  Policy on Minimum Revenue Provision for 2014/15  

 Annex 3  Interest Rate Forecasts 2014 – 2017    
 Annex 4  Economic Background      
 Annex 5  Creditworthiness Policy      
 Annex 6  Specified and Non-specified Investments 

 

 

Page 67



Appendix A 

Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 

 

This Appendix sets out full details for all aspects of the Treasury Management Strategy for 
2014/15. 

 

A1 Prudential Indicators and Treasury Indicators 

Local Authorities are required to set indicators to demonstrate they have fulfilled the 

objectives of the Prudential Code and CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 

Management. The indicators for 2014/15 and future years are set out at Annex1  

A2 Capital Expenditure and the Capital Financing Requirement 

A2.1 Capital expenditure plans are a key element of treasury management activity and form 
the first of the Prudential Indicators at Annex 1. Figures are as per the Capital 
Investment Plan Quarter 2 2013/14 report and are summarised below.  

 

Capital expenditure 

£M 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Total 23.6 24.6 23.3 10.2 5.0 0 

 

A2.2 The figures include a borrowing requirement of £32M over the medium term of which 

up to £8.6M is temporary awaiting confirmation of capital income. 

 

A2.3 These plans feed into the overall Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) which is 

explained at Annex 1 and summarised below. 

CFR 

£M 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Revised 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Total 136 142 146 150 150 145 

 

A3 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy statement 

A3.1 The Council is required to set aside an amount for the repayment of borrowing used 

for capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum 

revenue provision - MRP). It is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary 

payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   

A3.2 CLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an MRP 

Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are provided to councils, so 

long as there is a prudent provision.  

A3.3 The MRP Policy for 2014/15 is set out at Annex 2 to this report. 

Page 68



A4 Core funds and expected investment balances  

A4.1 The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 

expenditure or to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing impact on 

investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources (asset 

sales etc.).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each resource 

and anticipated day to day cash flow balances. 

Year End Resources 

£M 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Reserves 36 27 21 19 18 18 

Provisions 0 1 1 1 1 1 

Other Balances 11 6 9 7 5 3 

Total core funds 47 34 37 27 24 22 

Working capital 16 15 15 15 15 15 

Total Cash Requirement 63 59 52 42 39 37 

Excess LTL>CFR 21 5 1 (4) (4) (4) 

Expected Investments 84 64 53 46 43 41 

 
 
 
A5 Prospects for Interest Rates 
 
A5.1 The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of their 

service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.  Annex 3 draws 
together a number of current City forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and longer 
fixed interest rates. The following table gives the Capita central view. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual 

Average % 

Bank Rate     

% 

PWLB Borrowing Rates % 

(including certainty rate adjustment) 

5 year 25 year 50 year 

Dec 2013 0.50 2.50 4.40 4.40 

March 2014 0.50 2.50 4.40 4.40 

March 2015 0.50 2.80 4.60 4.70 

March 2016 0.50 3.10 5.00 5.10 

March 2017 1.25 3.40 5.10 5.20 

Page 69



A5.2 These levels are artificially low in the short term due to Bank of England policies, 

market conditions and the impact of quantitative easing. 

A5.3 Sensitivity of Forecasts. The projections within this report are based on officers 
“central” view of market rates applicable in 2014/15. These are subject to variation 
from interest rate changes and cash flow changes. An illustration of the potential 
impact of these changes is shown in the following table:  

 

 Variation Central Case Change +/- £ Variation* 

Change in Investment rates (new 

investments) 
0.84% 1% £0.67 million 

Change in Borrowing Rates (change in 

penalty cost on early repayment of  an 

indicative £5 million)** 

n/a 1% 
-£0.6million/ 

+£0.5 million  

Change in Average cash flow (assume 

increased investments)  
£67 million £10 million £0.05 million 

* Based on current levels of borrowing and investment 

**The strategy provides for no additional borrowing in 2014/15 for capital funding and all existing borrowing is at 

fixed rate so any change in Borrowing Rates will have no effect on interest payable 

 

A5.4 The above gives rise to difficult conditions for implementing the proposed strategy and 

the need for Treasury Management officers to remain agile and react to any changes 

in Bank of England policy or market sentiment. 

 

 

 

A6 Economic Conditions and Scenario Planning 
 

A6.1 A commentary on the economic background to this strategy, issued by Capita, is 

provided at Annex 4. 

A6.2 The uncertainty of economic conditions within the UK, Eurozone and USA will 

continue to have a significant impact on the Council’s Treasury Management function.  

A6.3 The Council is still facing a situation where Bank Rate and therefore investment 

returns are at record lows, well below the level payable on borrowings. 

A6.4 The Council has linked its medium term financial planning to the continuing uncertain 

conditions. The impact of these conditions on the Councils investment budget has 

been identified and has formed part of the budget planning process for future years. 

A6.5 The current economic conditions are still very unpredictable and as a result there are 

a range and potential speed of market movements that could occur over the next few 

years which will provide a challenge to officers. The current strategy and budgets 

reflect that uncertainty and are based on prudent views of market movements and 

counterparty limits are set to minimise the Council’s exposure to risk. 

Page 70



A6.6 The latent crisis in the Eurozone and the potential effect on markets will continue to be 

monitored by Officers for threats to treasury activities. The Council currently has a 

blanket duration limit of three months on all deposits (except to UK part-nationalised 

banks) to mitigate potential risks arising from the problems in Greece and other 

countries.  

A6.7 Varying the Council’s counterparty limits could increase or decrease investment yield 

with a corresponding change in the level of security (risk) over the counterparty. In the 

current market conditions any extension of counterparty limits and maximum length of 

investments could increase investment yield. However this would need to be 

considered against the higher risk of impairment. 

A6.8 The government has sold off 6% of its share in Lloyds Banking Group and indicated it 

will continue to reduce its stakeholding. The CFO will monitor the level of government 

support in the part-nationalised Banks and will adjust the exposure limits as 

appropriate. 

 

A6.9 The charge from the Minimum Revenue Provision policy (see section A3 and Annex2) 

generates £4.5 million (excluding PFI) per year for repayment of borrowing or 

postponement of new borrowing. Current credit and interest risk environments give 

rise to a preferred repayment strategy to reduce cost and cash levels. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



A7 Borrowing Strategy 

A7.1 The following table provides an analysis of current borrowing levels against the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR) derived from the approved Capital Investment Plan. 

This also forms one of the Prudential Indicators at Annex 1. 

£m 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

External Debt at 31 March  

External 

Borrowing  
148 138 138 138 138 134 

Other long-term 

liabilities 

(OLTL)* 

9 9 9 8 8 7 

Total Borrowing 

and Other Long 

Term Liabilities  
157 147 147 146 146 141 

The Capital 

Financing 

Requirement 
136 142 146 150 150 145 

* Assumes Energy from Waste costs are off –balance sheet. If the PFI scheme is required to be shown 

on-balance sheet the Council’s long-term liabilities would increase by approximately £50million from 

2014/15 

A7.2 In previous years, based on approved capital schemes and with uncertainty over 

market and regulatory risks, the Council adopted a strategy to take full funding of its 

capital borrowing in advance prior to predicted rate increases. Following changes to 

the Capital Investment Plan in terms of timing of both expenditure and funding, an 

element of borrowing has been surplus to capital financing requirements over the 

medium term. 

A7.3 Recent annual strategies have recommended seeking opportunities to repay 

borrowing to realign funding levels between the revised Capital Investment Plan and 

projected Capital Financing Requirement. £24million has been repaid over the last two 

years with the over-borrowing position expected to reverse from 2015/16. 

A7.4 The repayment policy was adjusted in 2013/14 in light of potential new Capital 

schemes increasing the CFR with a shift in emphasis for any repayment to be made 

on significant rises in PWLB rates providing advantageous rescheduling opportunities.  

A7.5 The trigger for any repayment option will be considered when the payback period of 

the repayment penalty falls to two years in terms of net interest. 

A7.6 The Capital Investment Plan remains fluid and the CFR in A7.1 includes £8.6million of 

temporary borrowing which may be replaced by other funding thereby reducing the 

CFR further.  

Page 72



A7.7 As a result of these factors and the continuing risks and costs in holding cash (section 

A8) the focus of the strategy switches back to early repaying borrowing to a target 

level of £10million over the next four years. 

A7.8 The benefits of the strategy will be weighed against any resultant need for the Council 

to internally borrow cash resources to fund capital spending. At some point in the 

future the Council would have to re-borrow when these internal resources fell below 

operational cash flow requirements or borrowing reaches maturity, with potential 

exposure to higher rates. 

A7.9 The current market conditions make repayment less attractive due to high penalty 

costs and these conditions are now forecast to continue further into 2015/16 (see 

section A5). Budget forecasts for 2014/15 have therefore not assumed the strategy 

aim to repay borrowing. However, the volatile conditions in the economic climate make 

predicting rate movements extremely difficult and Officers will act on this strategy at 

any point the rate environment moves to a favourable position. 

A7.10 Based on current PWLB repayment terms, gilt yields need to rise by around 0.08% -

0.10% on the levels as at December 2013 for any repayment to be affordable and by 

0.75% to reach the level at which the Council would ideally begin to make 

repayments. 

A7.11 Any repayment of borrowing will only be applied following a thorough assessment of: 

• any change to the level of the borrowing requirement  

• additional capital projects funded from borrowing 

• assessment of working capital and other Council cash backed resources such as 
Reserves, Provisions and capital grants 

• prevailing market conditions 

• anticipated cash flow  and any temporary borrowing requirements 

• future market expectations  

• the need to re-borrow in the medium to longer term as loans reach maturity 
 

A7.12 Rescheduling of existing debt will also be considered if opportunities arise, to 

supplement the primary aim of repaying loans. 

A7.13 No new borrowing is envisaged for 2014/15. However, if in future years capital plans 

significantly change and there is a borrowing need based on internal cash levels, the 

Council may seek to secure new funding prior to the anticipated rise in borrowing rates 

in future years. 

A7.14 The majority of the Council’s cost of interest and associated Revenue Provision relate 

to historic borrowing “supported” by central government and other debt transferred 

from Devon County Council on Local Government Reorganisation in 1998. (Borrowing 

is no longer fully supported due to reductions in Council grant) This supported 

borrowing along with prudential borrowing for capital resources which leads in most 

cases to an increase in the value of the Council’s own assets on its Balance Sheet. 

Page 73



A7.15 Borrowing from PWLB or other sources is only one option the Council has to finance 

its expenditure on capital projects e.g. the Council could use finance leases or provide 

financing via PFI agreements such as the Energy from Waste Plant.  

A7.16 As a matter of policy approved borrowing sources are from the Public Works Loan 

Board and market instruments from counterparties listed by the Financial Services 

Authority. Local Authority Bonds will also be considered going forward but in the short 

term is unlikely to be progressed as the Council does not have a borrowing need. 

 

A8 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY  

Investment Policy 

A8.1 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 

Government Investments and the CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services 

Code of Practice.   

A8.2 The Council’s investment priorities, in line with CLG Guidance, are: -  

  the security of capital   

the liquidity of its investments.  
 

A8.3 The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return on its investments 

commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.  

A8.4 The borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is unlawful and 

the Council will not engage in such activity. 

A8.5 Annex 5 to this report details the policy for selection of counterparties and 

management of investments to achieve the objectives of the Investment Policy. 

A8.6 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed at Annex 6 

under the ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ Investments categories. Counterparty limits 

will be set within the schedules accompanying the Council’s Treasury Management 

Practices. 

A8.7 In view of the difficult market conditions officers will continue to review alternative 

investment instruments for core cash. The Council is no longer considering loans to 

housing associations but the Mayor has asked officers to actively consider alternative 

options for loans or investments within Torbay. 

A8.8 The Investment Strategy is based on current projected cash levels. If any significant 

changes occur to cash levels, e.g. strategy implementation of early repayment of 

PWLB borrowing, then the Investment Strategy will need to be reviewed. 

A8.9 Any approved loan e.g. in local businesses driven by regeneration purposes will not 

form part of the Treasury Management strategy. 

Page 74



A8.10 If the Council wishes to invest in property for future rental streams this also will be 

dealt with outside of the Treasury management strategy, as a separate report to 

Council. 

A8.11 The Council does not adopt a specific Ethical Investments policy but officers will have 

regard to any questionable activity on the part of a counterparty or sovereign 

government before depositing funds. 

Investment Strategy 

A8.12 The  investment strategy for 2014/15 is strongly influenced by the market and credit 
risks outlined above but needs to be balanced with the need to maximise revenue 
within these risks. 

 
A8.13 Expected investment levels at A4.1 subject to increasing risk. Suitable counterparties 

complying with the Council’s selection policy are decreasing and enhanced rates 
previously available to Local Authorities have been scaled back or withdrawn 
completely in 2013/14 as a result of cheaper cash available through the Government’s 
Funding for Lending scheme.  

 
A8.14 Gives rise to strategy driver of using investment cash to repay borrowing (A7.6) to 

reduce exposure to the interest rate, market and credit risks. 
 
A8.15 Given the forecast for static interest rates there is value in exposing an element of 

core cash levels to longer dated deposits to maximise returns in the short term subject 
to the creditworthiness policy. 

 
A8.16 These will predominently be made with UK part-nationalised banks where the implicit 

government guarantee continues to offer the safest haven for Council cash. Duration 

will focus on one year deposits with these institutions to provide a maturity structure 

that allows officers to respond to reducing cash levels or significant changes in 

government stakeholding. 

A8.17 Officers will also monitor the market for lending to other Local Authorities which is 

likely to offer better risk/return opportuinities for remaining core cash over the limited 

Bank counterparties available. 

A8.18 A proportion of funds will be held in business reserve and notice accounts to ensure 

appropriate liquidity is maintained for normal cash flow purposes and strategy 

transactions (eg repayment of borrowing at short notice if PWLB rates move to a 

favourable position). 

A8.19 The Fund Manager’s strategy and performance will be subject to continuous 

monitoring and the CFO will vary the size of the holding in line with the aims of the 

overall strategy. 

 

 

 

Page 75



A9 Policy on the use of external advisors 

A9.1 The Council currently appoints Capita Asset Services – Treasury Solutions (brand 

name changed from Sector Treasury Services in 2013) as its external treasury 

management advisor. The position is to be reviewed in 2014. 

A9.2 The Council recognises the value in employing external providers of treasury 

management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 

The Chief Finance Officer will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 

methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented 

and subjected to regular review. 

A9.3 The Council acknowledges that the responsibility for treasury management decisions 

remains with the Council at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed 

upon the external advisors. 

 

A10 Reporting Arrangements and Management Evaluation 

A10.1 The Council will receive the following reports for 2014/15 as standard in line with the 

requirements of the Code of Practice: 

� Annual Treasury Management Strategy report (this report) 

� Mid-Year Treasury Review report 

� Annual Treasury Outturn report 

A10.2 The CFO will inform the Mayor/Executive Lead for Finance of any long-term 

borrowing/repayment undertaken or any significant events that may affect the 

Council’s treasury management activities. The CFO will maintain a list of staff 

authorised to undertake treasury management transactions on behalf of the Council. 

A10.3 The Chief Finance Officer is authorised to approve any movement between borrowing 

and other long-term liabilities within the Authorised Limit. Any such change will be 

reported to the next meeting of the Council. 

A10.4  The impact of these policies will be reflected as part of the Council’s revenue budget 
and therefore will be reported through the quarterly budget monitoring process. 

 
A10.5  The Council’s management and evaluation arrangements for Treasury Management 

are as follows: 

• Monthly monitoring report to the Chief Finance Officer, Executive Lead for 
Finance, Director of Place & Resources and majority opposition Group 

• Monthly meeting of the Treasury Manager/Chief Accountant to review previous 
months performance and plan following months activities 

• Regular meetings with the Council’s treasury advisors 

• Annual meetings with the Council’s appointed Fund Managers 
• Membership and participation in the CIPFA Benchmarking Club 
• The Audit Committee is the body responsible for scrutiny of Treasury 

Management. 

Page 76



A11 Other Matters 

A11.1 Loans to linked organisations. The Chief Finance Officer, in conjunction with the 

Executive Lead for Finance, is authorised to agree loans to lend to “linked” 

organisations (such as Academy schools, housing associations, Council associate 

and subsidiary companies and NHS partners). As approved by Council in September 

2012. 

A11.2 Advancing cash. If approved the Council will advance cash to Torbay Council 

schools at a rate equivalent to that of the forecast investment yield (to reflect the lost 

investment opportunity), with the option of an additional 0.25% risk premium. The 

service will have to identify the funding for this advance from revenue or reserves in 

the year of the advance. 

A11.3 Investing cash for Local Payment Scheme (LPS) Schools. If agreed by the Chief 

Finance Officer the Council will invest LPS school surplus balances on a temporary 

basis and endeavour to match Bank Rate on these investments on a variable basis. 

This will be for cash on a longer-term basis and will not apply to daily cash flow 

balances. 

A11.4 Soft Loans. New Financial Instruments require the recognition of soft loans i.e. where 

a loan is made at a lower than ‘competitive’ rate the cost implicit in achieving the lower 

rate must be reflected in the Council’s accounts. 

A11.5 Anti-Money Laundering. The Council will comply with all relevant regulations. 

A11.6 Intranet. The Council’s treasury management procedures and other relevant 

documents can be accessed on the Council’s intranet site within the financial services 

pages.  

Page 77



Annex 1 

Prudential & Treasury Management Indicators 2014/15 – 2017/18 

 

Capital expenditure 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans (per the 
Capital Investment Plan Q2 2013/14 report). 
 
 

Capital expenditure 

£M 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Total 23.6 24.6 23.3 10.2 5.0 0 

 

 

 

 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

 

The CFR is the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for 

from either revenue or capital resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s 

underlying borrowing need Based on historic expenditure.  Any capital expenditure above, 

which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.   

The CFR does not increase indefinitely. The minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a statutory 

annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with each asset’s 

life. 

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance leases).  Whilst 

these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, these types of 

scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not required to separately borrow 

for these schemes.  The Council currently has £10M of such schemes within the CFR which 

could rise in 2014/15 if the Councils 17% share of the Energy from Waste liability is 

accounted for as an “on balance sheet” PFI scheme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

£m 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Revised 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 

Total CFR 136 142 146 150 150 145 

Movement in CFR (1) 6 4 4 0 (5) 

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need 

for the year - capital 
5 11 9 9 5 0 

Less MRP/VRP and 

other financing 

movements 

(6) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) 

Movement in CFR (1) 6 4 4 0 (5) 

 

Temporary borrowing of up to £8.6million is included in the above CFR. Capital resources to 

this amount are expected and once confirmed will reduce the CFR by £8.6million.  

 

Gross Borrowing & Long term Liabilities and the Capital Financing Requirement 

In order to ensure that borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure 

that gross external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total CFR. 

£m 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

External Debt at 31 March  

External 

Borrowing  
148 138 138 138 138 134 

Other long-term 

liabilities (OLTL) 
9 9 9 8 8 7 

Total Borrowing 

and Other Long 

Term Liabilities  
157 147 147 146 146 141 

The Capital 

Financing 

Requirement 
136 142 146 150 150 145 

Excess of 

LTL>CFR 
(21) (5) (1) 4 4 4 

 

Page 79



 

Affordability Prudential Indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential indicators, 

but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the affordability of the 

capital investment plans.   These provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment 

plans on the Council’s overall finances. The Council is asked to approve the following 

indicators: 

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream. 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 
The ratio rises from 2014/15 due to expected substantial reductions in the Net Revenue 
Budget requirement measured against fixed costs of borrowing. 
 

% 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Ratio 7.62 7.04 8.47 9.20 9.77 9.72 

 

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on council tax. 

This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with capital decisions as part of the 
next year’s budget process.  The assumptions are based on the budget, but will invariably 
include some estimates, such as the level of Government support, which are not published 
over a three year period.  
 

£ 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Council tax - band D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

The Council approved a 4- year Capital Investment Plan in 2013/14. There are no new 

schemes being presented for approval for 2014/15 and central government has removed 

supported borrowing. Therefore, there will be no new incremental increases to Council Tax. 

However, if £8.6 million of temporary borrowing becomes permanent (expected capital 

receipts and grants are not confirmed) there will then be an incremental impact of £14 on the 

Torbay element of a Band D Council Tax. 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



Limits on Borrowing and Long-Term Liabilities 

The Operational Boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external borrowing and long-

term liabilities are not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be linked to 

the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual borrowing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Authorised Limit for external borrowing and long-term liabilities. A further key 

prudential indicator represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents 

a limit beyond which external borrowing is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised 

by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external borrowing which, while not desired, could 

be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.   

This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003. 

The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of 

a specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Limits on Activity 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are to restrain the 
activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing the 
impact of any adverse movement in interest rates.  However, if these are set to be too 
restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance. The 
indicators are: 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit 
for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments 

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous 
indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;  

Operational boundary    

£m 

2013/14 

Current 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Borrowing 163 152 152 152 157 

Long term liabilities 10 9 9 8 8 

Total 173 161 161 160 165 

Authorised limit 

                                 £m 

2013/14 

Current 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Borrowing 182 172 176 177 182 

Other long term liabilities 10 59 59 58 58 

Total 192 231 235 235 240 

Page 81



• Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the 
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing and are 
required for upper and lower limits 

 

Investment Treasury Indicator and Limit 

Total principal funds invested for greater than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to 

the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, 

and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end. The limits below allow for the 

external Fund Manager holding along with 50% of the in-house total to be fixed longer term.  

Interest rate Exposures 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

 Upper    

% 

Upper       

% 

Upper    

% 

Upper    

% 

Limits on fixed interest rates: 

• Debt 

• Investments 

 

100 

80 

 

100 

80 

 

100 

80 

 

100 

80 

Limits on variable interest rates 

• Debt 

• Investments 

 

20 

60 

 

20 

60 

 

30 

70 

 

30 

70 

Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2014/15 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 5% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 20% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 50% 

10 years to 25 years 10% 100% 

25 years to 40 years 10% 100% 

Over 40 years 5% 80% 

Maximum principal sums invested for over 364 days  

£m 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Principal sums invested > 

364 days 
66 45 35 30 28 

Page 82



Annex 2 

 

Policy on Minimum Revenue Provision for 2014/15 

 

1. The Minimum Revenue Provision is a statutory charge that the Council is required to 

make from its revenue budget.  This provision enables the Council to generate cash 

resources for the repayment of borrowing. The 2014/15 budget is £4.7 million.  

 

2. The calculation of the provision is prescribed by legislation, which states that Councils 

are required to “determine for the current financial year an amount of MRP that it 

considers to be prudent” and prepare an annual statement on their MRP calculation to 

their full Council. 

 

3. One of the aims of this legislation is to ensure that the repayment of principal owed for 

capital expenditure funded from unsupported borrowing is charged on a prudent basis 

which closely links to the asset’s life. The provision for all assets, irrespective of asset 

life, for expenditure funded from supported borrowing and prudential borrowing prior to 

2007/08 will continue to be charged at a minimum 4% per annum which is in line with 

central government’s “support” for these costs within the Council’s formula grant.  

 

4. Torbay Council’s Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement states that the 

calculation of the MRP is as follows which has 2 stages: 

 

i) The Council will budget as a minimum for a provision of 4% of its capital 

financing requirement calculated as at 31st March of the preceding financial 

year. The capital financing requirement (CFR) is a calculation of a Council’s 

“need to borrow” which is, in summary, the total of expenditure funded from 

borrowing less any repayments or similar previously made.  

 

To calculate the 4% provision the Council will use the “regulatory method” as 

identified in the Department of Communities and Local Government‘s (DCLG) 

Informal Commentary on the legislation. 

 

This calculation allows for the adjustments of the following items:  
 

- Deducting any expenditure and revenue provision made in relation to 
unsupported borrowing after 2007/08. The charge for unsupported 
borrowing after 2007/08 is calculated separately as described in paragraph 
ii below.  

- “Adjustment A” which relates to a previous calculation change in 2004 
- Adjustment of MRP to ensure no disadvantage results to Councils from the 

regulations compared to previous MRP regulations  
- Adjustment of MRP to ensure no disadvantage results to Councils from the 

requirements for accounting for Private Finance Initiative schemes 
 

Page 83



ii) For capital expenditure funded from unsupported or prudential borrowing less 
any repayment to date, the Council will make a provision based on the 
cumulative expenditure incurred on each asset in the previous financial years 
using a prudent asset life, which reflects the estimated usable life of that asset.  

 
The Council will use the “asset life method” for the calculation, the MRP for 
each asset will be calculated using an annuity calculation based on the 
Council’s estimated pooled borrowing interest rate for the relevant year as 
detailed in the Treasury Management Strategy for that year. This will be 
adjusted for:- 

 

• An adjustment to the MRP calculation will be made where there is 

expenditure in the previous financial year, but the asset is not yet 

operational. MRP will be calculated on the total expenditure on that asset in 

the year after the asset becomes operational. 

 

5) Where relevant, the suggested asset lives for certain types of capitalised expenditure 

as detailed in the MRP guidance issued by DCLG will be used. 

 

6) The Council will continue to charge services for their use of unsupported borrowing 

using a prudent asset life (or a shorter period) and an annuity calculation. Where 

possible the same asset life and borrowing interest rate will be used for both the 

charge to services and the calculation of the MRP.  

 

7) In exceptional circumstances a Service may be allowed to extend the repayment 

period beyond the prudent asset life but this may be limited to the interest element. 

The increased revenue cost over the longer term will be a Service issue.  

 

8)    Where assets prior to 2007/08 have been purchased by unsupported borrowing 

(before the current legislation applied) and a MRP at 4% is provided for, the Council 

will aim, over the long term, to balance the annual costs of the MRP on these assets 

with the repayments made by services. This may result in a Voluntary Revenue 

Provision (VRP) or reserve transfer being made. 

 

9)    The Council will not change its existing “Adjustment A” calculation. 

  

10)   To mitigate any negative impact from the changes in accounting for leases and PFI 

schemes the Council will include in the annual MRP charge an amount equal to the 

amount that has been taken to the balance sheet to reduce the balance sheet liability 

for a PFI scheme or a finance lease. The calculation will be based on the annuity 

method using the Internal Rate of Return (IRR) implicit in the PFI or lease agreement. 

 

11)  In relation to borrowing transferred to the Council from Devon County Council for the 

Council’s share of the Devon County Council debt for local government 

reorganisation, the Council will budget to make a VRP over 40 years to ensure cash 

resources for the repayment of the debt is available on maturity. 

Page 84



Annex 3 

Interest Rate Forecasts 2014 – 2017 (as at December 2013) 

 

 

 

P
age 85



Appendix 4 

Economic Background (provided by Capita on 2nd December 2013) 

THE GLOBAL ECONOMY 

The Eurozone (EZ).  The sovereign debt crisis has eased during 2013 which has been a year of 

comparative calm after the hiatus of the Cyprus bailout in the spring.  The EZ finally escaped from 

seven quarters of recession in quarter 2 of 2013 but growth is likely to remain weak and so will 

dampen UK growth.  The ECB’s pledge to buy unlimited amounts of bonds of countries which ask for 

a bail out, has provided heavily indebted countries with a strong defence against market forces.  This 

has bought them time to make progress with their economies to return to growth or to reduce the 

degree of recession.  However, debt to GDP ratios (2012 figures) of 176% Greece, Italy 131%, 

Portugal 124%, Ireland 123% and Cyprus 110%, remain a cause of concern, especially as many of 

these countries are experiencing continuing rates of increase in debt in excess of their rate of 

economic growth i.e. these debt ratios are continuing to deteriorate.  Any sharp downturn in economic 

growth would make these countries particularly vulnerable to a new bout of sovereign debt crisis.  It 

should also be noted that Italy has the third biggest debt mountain in the world behind Japan and the 

US.  Greece remains particularly vulnerable and continues to struggle to meet EZ targets for fiscal 

correction.  Many commentators still view a Greek exit from the Euro as inevitable and there are 

concerns that austerity measures in Cyprus could also end up in forcing an exit.  The question 

remains as to how much damage an exit by one country would do and whether contagion would 

spread to other countries.  However, the longer a Greek exit is delayed, the less are likely to be the 

repercussions beyond Greece on other countries and on EU banks.  It looks increasingly likely that 

Slovenia will be the next country to need a bailout.   

Sentiment in financial markets has improved considerably during 2013 as a result of firm Eurozone 

commitment to support struggling countries and to keep the Eurozone intact.  However, the 

foundations to this current “solution” to the Eurozone debt crisis are still weak and events could easily 

conspire to put this into reverse.  There are particular concerns as to whether democratically elected 

governments will lose the support of electorates suffering under EZ imposed austerity programmes, 

especially in countries like Greece and Spain which have unemployment rates of over 26% and 

unemployment among younger people of over 50%.  The Italian political situation is also fraught with 

difficulties in maintaining a viable coalition which will implement an EZ imposed austerity programme 

and undertake overdue reforms to government and the economy. 

USA.  The economy has managed to return to reasonable growth in Q2 2013 of 2.5% y/y and 2.8% in 

Q3, in spite of the fiscal cliff induced sharp cuts in federal expenditure that kicked in on 1 March, and 

increases in taxation.  The Federal Reserve has continued to provide huge stimulus to the economy 

through its $85bn per month asset purchases programme of quantitative easing.  However, it is 

expected that this level of support will start to be tapered down early in 2014. It has also pledged not 

to increase the central rate until unemployment falls to 6.5%; this is probably unlikely to happen until 

early 2015. Consumer, investor and business confidence levels have improved markedly in 2013.  

The housing market has turned a corner and house sales and increases in house prices have 

returned to healthy levels.  Many house owners have, therefore, been helped to escape from 

negative equity and banks have also largely repaired their damaged balance sheets so that they can 

resume healthy levels of lending. All this portends well for a reasonable growth rate looking forward. 

China.  Concerns that Chinese growth could be heading downwards have been allayed by recent 

stronger statistics. There are still concerns around an unbalanced economy which is heavily 

dependent on new investment expenditure, and for a potential bubble in the property sector to burst, 

as it did in Japan in the 1990s, with its consequent impact on the financial health of the banking 

sector. There are also increasing concerns around the potential size, and dubious creditworthiness, 

of some bank lending to local government organisations and major corporates. This primarily 

Page 86



occurred during the government promoted expansion of credit, which was aimed at protecting the 

overall rate of growth in the economy after the Lehman’s crisis. 

Japan.  The initial euphoria generated by “Abenomics”, the huge QE operation instituted by the 

Japanese government to buy Japanese debt, has tempered as the follow through of measures to 

reform the financial system and the introduction of other economic reforms, appears to have stalled.  

However, at long last, Japan has seen a return to reasonable growth and positive inflation during 

2013 which augurs well for the hopes that Japan can escape from the bog of stagnation and deflation 

and so help to support world growth.  The fiscal challenges though are huge; the gross debt to GDP 

ratio is about 245% in 2013 while the government is currently running an annual fiscal deficit of 

around 50% of total government expenditure.  Within two years, the central bank will end up 

purchasing about Y190 trillion (£1,200 billion) of government debt. In addition, the population is 

ageing due to a low birth rate and will fall from 128m to 100m by 2050. 

THE UK ECONOMY 

Economic growth.  Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the worst and 

slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth stongly rebounded in 2013 - quarter 1 (+0.3%), 2 

(+0.7%) and 3 (+0.8%),  to surpass all expectations as all three main sectors, services, 

manufacturing and construction contributed to this strong upturn.  The Bank of England  has, 

therefore, upgraded growth forecasts in the August and November quarterly Inflation Reports for 

2013 from 1.2% to 1.6% and for 2014 from 1.7% to 2.8%, (2015 unchanged at 2.3%).  The November 

Report stated that: -  

In the United Kingdom, recovery has finally taken hold. The economy is growing robustly as 

lifting uncertainty and thawing credit conditions start to unlock pent-up demand. But significant 

headwinds — both at home and abroad — remain, and there is a long way to go before the 

aftermath of the financial crisis has cleared and economic conditions normalise. That 

underpins the MPC’s intention to maintain the exceptionally stimulative stance of monetary 

policy until there has been a substantial reduction in the degree of economic slack. The pace 

at which that slack is eroded, and the durability of the recovery, will depend on the extent to 

which productivity picks up alongside demand. Productivity growth has risen in recent 

quarters, although unemployment has fallen by slightly more than expected on the back of 

strong output growth. 

So very encouraging - yes, but, still a long way to go!  However, growth is expected to be strong for 

the immediate future.  One downside is that wage inflation continues to remain significantly below 

CPI inflation so disposable income and living standards are under pressure, although income tax cuts 

have ameliorated this to some extent.  A rebalancing of the economy towards exports has started but 

as 40% of UK exports go to the Eurozone, the difficulties in this area are likely to continue to dampen 

UK growth.   

 

Forward guidance.  The Bank of England issued forward guidance in August  which said that the Bank 

will not start to consider raising interest rates until the jobless rate (Labour Force Survey / ILO i.e. not the 

claimant count measure) has fallen to 7% or below.  This would require the creation of about 750,000 jobs 

and was forecast to take three years in August, but revised to possibly quarter 4 2014 in November. The 

UK unemployment rate currently stands at 2.5 million i.e. 7.6 % on the LFS / ILO measure.  The Bank's 

guidance is subject to three provisos, mainly around inflation; breaching any of them would sever the link 

between interest rates and unemployment levels.  This actually makes forecasting Bank Rate much more 

complex given the lack of available reliable forecasts by economists over a three year plus horizon. The 

recession since 2007 was notable for how unemployment did NOT rise to the levels that would normally be 

Page 87



expected in a major recession and the August Inflation Report noted that productivity had sunk to 2005 

levels.  There has, therefore, been a significant level of retention of labour, which will mean that a 

significant amount of GDP growth can be accommodated without a major reduction in unemployment.   

Credit conditions.  While Bank Rate has remained unchanged at 0.5% and quantitative easing has 

remained unchanged at £375bn in 2013, the Funding for Lending Scheme (FLS), aimed at 

encouraging banks to expand lending to small and medium size enterprises, has been extended.  

The FLS certainly seems to be having a positive effect in terms of encouraging house purchases 

(though levels are still far below the pre-crisis level), FLS is also due to be bolstered by the second 

phase of Help to Buy aimed at supporting the purchase of second hand properties, which is now due 

to start in earnest in January 2014.  While there have been concerns that these schemes are creating 

a bubble in the housing market, the house price increases outside of London and the south-east have 

been minimal.  However, bank lending to small and medium enterprises continues to remain weak 

and inhibited by banks still repairing their balance sheets and anticipating tightening of regulatory 

requirements. 

Inflation.  Inflation has fallen from a peak of 3.1% in June 2013 to 2.2% in October. It is expected to 

fall back to reach the 2% target level within the MPC’s two year time horizon. 

AAA rating. The loss of the UK’s AAA rating from Fitch (April 2013) and Moody’s (February 2013) 

has caused little market reaction. 

Capita Asset Services forward view  

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing on the UK. Major 

volatility in bond yields is likely to endure as investor fears and confidence ebb and flow between 

favouring more risky assets i.e. equities, and safer bonds.  

There could well be volatility in gilt yields over the next year as financial markets await the long 

expected start of tapering of asset purchases by the Fed.  The timing and degree of tapering could 

have a significant effect on both Treasury and gilt yields.  Equally, at the time of writing, the political 

deadlock and infighting between Democrats and Republicans over the budget, and the raising of the 

debt limit, has only been kicked down the road, rather than resolved. Resolving these issues could 

have a significant effect on gilt yields during 2014. 

The longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, due to the high volume of gilt issuance 

in the UK, and of bond issuance in other major western countries.  Increasing investor confidence in 

economic recovery is also likely to compound this effect as a continuation of recovery will further 

encourage investors to switch back from bonds to equities.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



Annex 5 

Creditworthiness Policy 

 

1. This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset Services.  

This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utlilising credit ratings from 

the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moodys and Standard and Poors. The 

credit ratings are supplemented by with the following overlays: 

� Credit watches and credit outlooks from the credit rating agencies 

� Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely changes in 

credit ratings 

� Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 

countries 

 

2. This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks in 
a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of Credit Default 
Swap (CDS) spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands 
which indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties. The Chief Finance 
Officer applies and reviews suitable financial and durational limits to each of these 
bands. 

 
3. The Capita creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just 

primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give undue 

preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 

4. All credit ratings will be monitored on a weekly basis. The Council is alerted to 

changes to ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Capita creditworthiness 

service and the CFO will vary the approved lending list as appropriate to these 

changes.  

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting 
the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be 
withdrawn immediately. 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other 
market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

5. The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from 

countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA+.The list of countries that 

qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this report are shown below and this 

list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers should ratings change in 

accordance with this policy. 

 

 

 

Page 89



AAA AA+ 

Australia Luxembourg Hong Kong 

Canada Norway Netherlands 

Denmark Singapore United Kingdom 

Finland Sweden USA 

Germany Switzerland  

    

6. Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition the 

CFO will also use market data and market information, information on government 

support for banks and the credit ratings of that government support. 

7. The Council uses an external fund manager to manage a proportion of the investment 

portfolio available to offset the borrowing requirement. The use of an external fund 

manager allows the Council to spread its treasury risk in relation to type of investment, 

investment counterparties and manager opinion. 

8. The external fund manager will comply with the Annual Investment Strategy.  The 

agreement between the Council and the fund manager additionally stipulates 

guidelines and duration and other limits in order to contain and control risk.  

9. The fund manager mandate allows for additional amounts to be placed and the CFO 

will exercise this option if this is deemed to be in the best interests of the Council up to 

a limit of 35% of the total portfolio. As Council’s cash investment reduce it is likely the 

Fund Manager holding will be correspondingly decreased. The Council retains the 

right to withdraw all or part of the fund at seven days notice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



Annex 6 

 

Specified and Non-Specified Investments 

Investments types recorded in bold type are the instruments most commonly used by the in-

house team. 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, with 

maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where 

applicable. 

 
Minimum ‘High’ 

Credit Criteria 
Use 

Debt Management Agency 

Deposit Facility 
-- In-house 

Term deposits – local 

authorities and other public 

sector bodies  

-- In-house 

Term deposits – banks and 

building societies  

Creditworthiness 

system colour band 

“Green” 

In-house and Fund 

Manager 

UK nationalised/part-

nationalised banks 
-- 

In-house and Fund 

Manager 

Banks part-nationalised by high 

credit rated (sovereign rating) 

countries – non UK 

Sovereign rating AA+ 
In-house and Fund 

Manager 

Collective Investment Schemes 

structured as Open Ended Investment 

Companies (OEICs): - 

 

1. Government Liquidity 
Funds 

2. Money Market Funds 
 

 

AAA 
In-house and Fund 

Manager 

 

 

 

Page 91



 

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not meet the 

Specified Investment criteria.   

A variety of investment instruments will be used, subject to the credit quality of the institution, 

and depending on the type of investment made it will fall into one of the above categories.  

 

The maturity limits recomended will not be exceeded. Under the delegated powers the Chief 

Finance Officer can set limits that are lower based on the latest economic conditions and 

credit ratings.  

 

Investment Type 
Minimum Credit 

Criteria 
Use 

Max % of 

total 

investments 

Max. 

maturity 

period * 

UK nationalised/part-

nationalised banks 

(maturities over one 

year) 

Sovereign rating 

AA+ 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

50%  3 years 

Term deposits (over one 

year) – local authorities 

and other public sector 

bodies 

-- In-house 50% 5 years 

Term deposits (over one 

year) – banks and 

building societies 

Creditworthiness 

system  colour 

band “Purple” 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

75% 2 years 

Collateralised deposit See note 1 In-house  20% 5 years 

Certificates of deposits  

issued by banks and 

building societies 

(maturities under one 

year) 

Creditworthiness 

system colour band 

“Green” 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

50% 1 year 

Certificates of deposits  

issued by banks and 

building societies 

(maturities over one year) 

Creditworthiness 

system colour band 

“Purple” 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

50% 1 year 

UK Government 

Gilts/Treasury Bills 

Sovereign rating 

AA+ 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

100% 5 years 

Page 92



Investment Type 
Minimum Credit 

Criteria 
Use 

Max % of 

total 

investments 

Max. 

maturity 

period* 

Bonds issued by 

multilateral development 

banks 

AA+ 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

50% 5 years 

Sovereign bond issues 

(other than the UK govt) 

Sovereign rating 

AA+ 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

50% 5 years 

Structured Deposits 

Creditworthiness 

system colour 

band “Orange” <1 

year “Purple” >1 

year 

In-House 25% 2 years 

Term deposits with 

unrated counterparties 

with unconditional 

guarantee from HMG or 

credit-rated parent 

institution. 

 

Specific counterparty to be 

approved by CFO 

Sovereign rating 

(guarantor) 

Sovereign AA+ or 

Creditworthiness 

system colour band 

“Red” 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

20% 1 year 

Commercial paper 

issuance by UK banks 

covered by UK 

Government guarantee 

Sovereign rating 

AA+ 

Fund 

Manager 
35% 5 years 

Commercial paper other 

Creditworthiness 

system colour band 

“Red” 

Fund 

Manager 
35% 5 years 

Floating Rate Notes Long-term AA 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

35% 5 years 

Property Fund: the use of 
these investments would 

constitute capital expenditure 

-- 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

35% 5 years 

Page 93



Investment Type 
Minimum Credit 

Criteria 
Use 

Max % of 

total 

investments 

Max. 

maturity 

period* 

Collective Investment Schemes 

structured as Open Ended 

Investment Companies 

(OEICs):- 

1.Bond Funds 

2.Gilt Funds 

 

 

AAA 
Fund 

Manager 
35% 5 years 

Corporate Bonds AA 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

35% 5 years 

Other debt issuance by 

UK Banks covered by UK 

Government guarantee 

Sovereign rating 

AA+ 

In-house 

and Fund 

Manager 

35% 5 years 

 

*Of which in any class of investment: 

• 10% maximum 3 years (or over) 
• 25% maximum 2 to 3 years 

 

Notes 

1. As collateralised deposits are backed by collateral of AAA rated local authority LOBOs, this 

investment instrument is regarded as being a AAA rated investment as it is equivalent to lending 

to a local authority. 

 

Page 94



  

 
 

Title: Strategic Risk Management Quarter 2 2013/14 
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
  

To: Audit Committee On: 22 January 2014 
    
Key Decision: No   
   

Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to 
Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

Contact Officer: Mark Bennett 

℡ Telephone: 01803 207360 
�  E.mail: Mark.bennett@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Key points and Summary 
 
1.1 The Council has developed a new approach to risk management as reported to 

the Audit Committee in March 2013. This report outlines the council’s position at 

Quarter 2. 

 

1.2 Five Key Strategic Risks have been identified for the Council during 2013/14;  A 

lead (sponsoring) director/executive head has be identified for each risk: 

 

 

1.3 The new approach has proved to be effective at a strategic level. Further work 

will be required to fully embed the new approach within the organisation and to 

align the management of operational risk with the new approach 

 

 
 
For more detailed information please refer to the supporting information 
attached. 
 
Mark Bennett 
Head of Business Services 
 
  

Agenda Item 10

Page 95



  

 

Supporting Information 
 
A1. Introduction and history 
 
A1 Five Key Strategic Risks have been identified for the Council during 2012/13; A 

lead (sponsoring) director/executive head has be identified for each risk: 

Fair decision making – Mark Bennett 

Demand management – Caroline Taylor 

Welfare reforms – Charles Uzzell 

Finance – Paul Looby 

Safeguarding Richard Williams 

 
B2  Position at Quarter 2013/14 
 
B1 Mitigation measures have been identified for all strategic risks. Current 

effectiveness has been assessed against a four point scale: 
 

Will achieve desired outcomes A 

Minor improvement actions - monitor B 

Improvement actions - monitor with concern C 

Won't achieve desired outcomes D 

 
B2 The majority of mitigation measures have been assessed as A or B with no risks 

identified with category D 
 
B3   Performance overview: (To be read in conjunction with Appendix 1) 
 
1 Fair Decision making 

 

• Actions have been identified to minimise the possibility of a successful 

legal challenge against the council’s decision to reconfigure services.  

o During the year the council has not incurred costs or delays in 

reconfiguring its services through legal challenge. Key elements 

in achieving this has been; 

� A clear timetable and process for decision making for the 

2014/15 budget with an effective programme of 

consultation currently underway. This still leaves the 

Council with tight timetable to meet. 

� Draft Equalities impact assessments are in place these 

will be updated during the consultation process and be 

available to members in February 2014 for each 

proposal classified as a major community interest. 

Providing members with sufficient information prior to 

decisions being made 

Page 96



  

� There is potential to improve the focus of Overview and 

Scrutiny through closer working with the mayor to identify 

areas for the board to review 

• The council constantly reviews developing court cases from other 

areas to ensure that its processes remain fit for purpose with regular 

reports to the Senior leadership Team 

• The change in risk rating from B to C in some areas reflects the 

changing national picture and need to make greater saving with 

increased community impact. 

 

2 Demand management 

 

• Actions have been identified to enable the Council to understand and 

plan for changes in demand for through demographic change and 

changes in government policy 

o Although work has been undertaken in this area this will require 

further development during 2014/15 in particular the impact of 

early intervention, demand modelling in the JSNA, and 

performance reporting 

o Analysis of government policy changes continue to be reported 

to SLT with an improved identification of actions require, 

together with reports to members at IEG meetings 

 

3 Welfare reforms 

 

• Actions have been identified to enable the Council to understand and 

develop actions to mitigate the impact of benefit reforms being 

introduced during 2013/14 

o Key element have been successfully addressed 

o However, as with the introduction of any new policy careful 

monitoring will be required, especially to understand and 

address secondary impacts for example homelessness  

o Take up of the hardship fund has been less than expected the 

need for further work with partners to raise awareness has been 

identified 

4 Finance  

 

• Actions have been identified to enable the Council to deliver a 

balanced budget with an agreed level of reserves 

o This risk has been successfully managed at a time when 

Torbay along with all council’s has been required to address the 

impact of a reduction in grants from central government.  

Budget proposals for 2014 and 2015 are currently being 

development  with consultation underway 

o A need for more effective recovery planning has been identified 

Page 97



  

o  Managing this risk will be a continuing challenge in  future 

years 

 
5 Safeguarding  

 
• Children’s Safeguarding has been a particular focus for the council in 

recent years with effective measures in place at an operational at 

strategic level to address this issue  

o The recent Ofsted inspection has recognised these 

improvements  

o For 2013/14 this will be a continued area for focus to ensure 

agreed actions continue to be delivered  

 
Conclusion 
 
The development of a new approach has enabled the council to take a more strategic 
approach to risk management during 2013 /14. Future focus will be to further develop 
this approach and embed it within the organisation  
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 Strategic Risk Register Summary 

 
 

Page 98



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendix 1- Strategic Risk Register Summary 

 

P
age 99



  

 
 

P
age 100



  

 

P
age 101



  

 

P
age 102



  

 
 

 
 

P
age 103


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Audit Committee Update
	6 The Annual Audit Letter for Torbay Council
	7 Certification Report 2012/13
	8 Internal Audit Report 2013/14 - Six Month Monitoring Report
	9 Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15
	10 Strategic Risk Management Quarter 2 2013/14

